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          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Good morning.

          3  This hearing of the General Welfare Committee is

          4  called to order.

          5                 I want to welcome everyone who is

          6  here today. A special welcome to our friends from

          7  HRA. Thank you, Commissioner, and Deputy

          8  Commissioner, for being here with us.

          9                 I would like to welcome my colleague,

         10  Eric Gioia, who will be speaking in a moment as

         11  well.

         12                 I want to thank him for his good work

         13  on this issue.

         14                 This is an important moment for us

         15  all to be getting together. I think everyone in this

         16  room knows that when dealing with issues with HIV

         17  and AIDS, we could meet every day because there are

         18  so much to work on. But we also all I think have

         19  been given pause by the events of the last week or

         20  so and the announcement by Commissioner Frieden of

         21  some of the new dangers that we all face.

         22                 I think it's really been a wake-up

         23  call to us and it's a moment for us to redouble our

         24  efforts to serve people with HIV and AIDS and to

         25  serve them promptly and effectively, and the three

                                                            4

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  bills we're discussing today I think aim at ensuring

          3  that the City continues to progress in that vain.

          4                 Just at the outset I want to say that

          5  Speaker Miller could not be with us, but he has been

          6  in the forefront of promoting these three pieces of

          7  legislation, and has kept this issue front and

          8  center on the agenda and I want to thank him for

          9  that.

         10                 And as I mentioned, Council Member

         11  Eric Gioia, not just in terms of the legislative

         12  piece, but also in terms of the work he has done

         13  with the Investigations Committee, has kept us all

         14  focused, and I think brought up very important new

         15  facts about how we have to do our work better, all

         16  of us. And Council Member Chris Quinn will be

         17  joining us in a moment, I think everyone knows has

         18  been a tireless and extremely effective advocate on

         19  behalf of people with HIV and AIDS.

         20                 A lot of people helped us as we

         21  organized this hearing, both the Council staff,

         22  obviously, and I want to particularly thank my

         23  counsel Jackie Sherman. But also many advocates, and

         24  I think you all know, all of you, played a role in

         25  helping us think about this hearing and helped us
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          2  think about how to draft the legislation properly,

          3  but a special thanks to Armen Mergian and Jennifer

          4  Clinton of Housing Works, and happy birthday to

          5  Armen, it's his birthday today. And also, of course

          6  to Jennifer Flynn, of New York City AIDS Housing

          7  Network, who has been a wonderful partner in this

          8  endeavor.

          9                 Just very briefly, everyone knows, we

         10  are the epicenter of a huge and, just as we saw a

         11  week ago, not by any means improving, in many ways

         12  getting worse national crisis. The facts are so

         13  striking, 18 percent of all the documented AIDS

         14  cases in the United States of America are in New

         15  York City. This is based on figures at the end of

         16  2003, New York had 162,000 of the nation's roughly

         17  900,000 documented AIDS cases. It's an astounding

         18  statistic.

         19                 We all know over the last ten, 15

         20  years there have been tremendous advances on the

         21  medical front, people with HIV and AIDS are living

         22  longer, healthier lives. But, again, we've learned

         23  that those advances can be in a sense fleeting as

         24  new and painful developments occur.

         25                 What we also know, and studies have
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          2  proven this repeatedly is that people who have a

          3  stable housing environment and important supports

          4  and services, are far more likely to receive

          5  consistent medical care than those who don't have

          6  that type of environment, and essentially the

          7  message is a stable housing sustained good health. I

          8  think it's not quite as simple as that, but it may

          9  be very much close to that. And stable housing is

         10  truly a key component to people maintaining good

         11  health.

         12                 Now, the City agency, of course, that

         13  deals on the front line of this issue is HASA, and

         14  HASA's responsibilities include providing medically

         15  appropriate transitional and permanent housing,

         16  housing obviously that is suitable for people who

         17  have severely compromised immune systems. And the

         18  majority of HASAs, at this point the number we have

         19  is about 46,000 clients, do require some kind of

         20  assistance, specifically in the area of housing.

         21                 Now, according to HASA figures from

         22  this last December, about 2,000 people at the end of

         23  last year were receiving housing assistance in the

         24  form of emergency housing, which is obviously a very

         25  significant number. We all know and we talked about
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          2  it in many different parts of the work of the

          3  General Welfare Committee, emergency housing,

          4  although often necessary is never the most

          5  cost-effective solution, and often does not provide

          6  the best environment for anyone, particularly for

          7  HASA clients.

          8                 The bill I have introduced,

          9  Introduction of 535, aims to speed up the process of

         10  moving clients from emergency housing to permanent

         11  housing. We believe and we appreciate that HASA

         12  views moving its clients to permanent housing as a

         13  priority, and I certainly commend them for

         14  understanding it's a priority, and we look forward

         15  to working with them because we believe this

         16  legislation is very consistent with their goals. But

         17  we are moving this piece, 535, because we think we

         18  need to constantly improve and streamline and

         19  clarifying the process of getting people to

         20  permanent housing, and give us all a clear mandate

         21  and incentive to do so.

         22                 We look forward to working together

         23  on this piece of legislation and the other two we'll

         24  be discussing today, to make sure that everyone who

         25  does have HIV and AIDS can get the best quality and
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          2  the most medically appropriate housing.

          3                 And now it is my pleasure to turn to

          4  my colleague, Council Member Eric Gioia. Again, I

          5  can't thank him enough for the work he has done,

          6  that has shed so much light here, and I'd love him

          7  to say a few words about what we're doing today and

          8  specifically about his piece of legislation.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you,

         10  Chairman DeBlasio, and thank you for the kind

         11  introduction, but more importantly, thank you for

         12  the extraordinary work that you do today and every

         13  day to better the lives and government of this City.

         14  You do really extraordinary work and I thank you for

         15  that.

         16                 As Chairman of the Committee on

         17  Oversight and Investigations, I am very proud to be

         18  sitting here today on this topic.

         19                 We have seen time and time again in

         20  our City and in our country that when a bureaucracy

         21  is unchecked and unmonitored, it fails the people it

         22  is meant to serve.

         23                 My job as Chairman of Oversight

         24  Investigations, is to go around this City,

         25  agency-by-agency, and to assess the facts, to expose
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          2  the facts, to check up to see if people are doing

          3  the job that they're intended to do by law and are

          4  charged to do.

          5                 Sometimes it can be, it's an

          6  extraordinary job and I'm pleased to do it, but

          7  sometimes it can grow quite contentious, because the

          8  people who you investigate and expose the facts are

          9  very rarely pleased that you're shining a light on

         10  the job they're doing.

         11                 In no way is the job meant to cast

         12  judgment on people and say they are bad people, or

         13  to find the boogiemen in City government, but it is

         14  a job that is to demand accountability, and a job

         15  that is meant to bring facts to light, and a job

         16  that I like to say is not about assessing blame, but

         17  establishing where we can do better and figuring out

         18  ways on how by working together we can achieve a

         19  greater good.

         20                 For people with AIDS in New York

         21  City, HASA's work can mean the difference between a

         22  life of dignity, or a daily struggle to survive.

         23                 Because this is an organization with

         24  a critical mission, which performance can mean the

         25  difference between life and death for the people it
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          2  serves, it demands our attention.

          3                 Last year we investigated the

          4  conditions of emergency or conditional housing for

          5  some of HASA's clients, and what we found is very

          6  disturbing.

          7                 Our City has a legal obligation, not

          8  to mention, a moral imperative to provide medically

          9  appropriate housing to people with HIV and AIDS.

         10  That means clean, safe facilities that provide at

         11  minimum a clean mattress, linens and a refrigerator

         12  where clients can store their medications.

         13                 This emergency or transitional

         14  housing is meant to be a stopping place before

         15  clients are placed in suitable, permanent homes.

         16  What we found in our investigation, however, were

         17  individuals living in ramshackle SROs and rooming

         18  houses. These hovels cost taxpayers in some cases

         19  more than $2,100 per month.

         20                 Some of these units were barely

         21  habitable, let alone medically appropriate. Some had

         22  leaks or holes in the walls or ceilings, some lacked

         23  electricity and in one case the apartment even

         24  lacked heat.

         25                 Some, if not many, actually had open
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          2  building code violations. Half failed to provide the

          3  necessities required by the courts to make them

          4  medically appropriate.

          5                 Clients complained of being shuffled

          6  from one temporary or emergency shelter to the next

          7  without any help settling into permanent housing. I

          8  think we'll be hearing from some of those clients

          9  today.

         10                 Meanwhile, our City has shifted

         11  millions earmarked to permanent housing solutions to

         12  pay for these substandard units, putting people with

         13  AIDS at risk.

         14                 My job is to help to give taxpayers

         15  confidence that their dollars are being well spent,

         16  and it's to help ensure that some of our most

         17  vulnerable citizens, people who this legislation is

         18  designed to protect, are being well served.

         19                 What people come to me and they're

         20  afraid of often times is a massive bureaucracy that

         21  spends taxpayer money with little regard for

         22  results, and that is what we are here today to

         23  protect against.

         24                 Because the real result of a

         25  haphazard system is that nearly 31,000 New Yorkers
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          2  who depend on HASA for help are treated with

          3  dignity. As I said before, this is a situation which

          4  needs our attention now more than ever, since the

          5  court-ordered monitoring of this agency has now

          6  expired.

          7                 Council Member Quinn, who will be

          8  with us soon, and DeBlasio, I want to make sure that

          9  HASA's standards and their clients don't fall

         10  through the cracks.

         11                 What we're asking for, what all New

         12  Yorkers should demand from every agency, is

         13  transparency, is accountability, and is strict

         14  adherence to the law.

         15                 These are basic tenets of good

         16  government. We should demand it of this agency, and

         17  of every City agency.

         18                 HASA should have a central housing

         19  database. This is a no-brainer for an organization

         20  with the mission of housing people.

         21                 We want to know how many HASA clients

         22  has, how long it takes them to receive emergency

         23  shelter, and how long it takes them subsequently for

         24  them to get into permanent housing.

         25                 We know that those living with HIV or
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          2  AIDS, who have stable, long-term housing, are four

          3  times more likely to receive medical care, and

          4  adhere to their medical regimens than those who are

          5  not.

          6                 HASA should ensure its clients are

          7  receiving all the benefits to which they are

          8  entitled to, from public assistance to food stamps.

          9                 We want to ensure that all of this is

         10  done in a timely manner. What we want is to make

         11  sure we are a model of compassion, of efficiency, of

         12  effectiveness and of good government.

         13                 I believe our City has an

         14  opportunity. It has an opportunity that when we get

         15  things right, we can be a laboratory for democracy.

         16  Here is where theories are tested, and practices are

         17  perfected. And when we do this right here in New

         18  York City, it's hard for any other place in the

         19  country to claim it can't be done.

         20                 We saw a decade ago with COMSTAT with

         21  a new way to manage the Police Department how

         22  successful this can be, not only at making the

         23  streets safe in New York, but other municipalities,

         24  cities across the country, from Philadelphia to

         25  Atlanta to Los Angeles, have implemented our model.
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          2  That is what I hope to begin to achieve today. But

          3  beyond creating a system for others to follow, we

          4  must create a government that does what it should,

          5  and that's serve our citizens.

          6                 I thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

          8  again, Council Member.

          9                 I want to welcome two of our other

         10  colleagues on the General Welfare Committee. Council

         11  Member Annabel Palma, and I want to welcome someone,

         12  who as I said before has been a tireless advocate,

         13  and more importantly, a very, very effective

         14  advocate on behalf of people with HIV and AIDS, and

         15  I want to thank her for the legislation that she has

         16  introduced, which I think is an absolutely crucial

         17  part of the package of legislation we're discussing

         18  here in this hearing.

         19                 Council Member Chris Quinn, I would

         20  like to welcome you to say some opening remarks.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you. I'm

         22  sorry I was late. I'm sorry I was late. I was tied

         23  up at yet another stadium-related meeting.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I just want to

         25  say for the record that Chris needs to clone herself
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          2  and one part of her can deal with stadium issues,

          3  and the other can deal with everything else.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Is there

          5  something going on with the stadium?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Yes. The

          7  stadium clone would be much less happy than the

          8  other clone, but that's life.

          9                 I want to thank you, Mr. Chair, for

         10  having this hearing today, and Chairperson Gioia,

         11  for the investigations.

         12                 You know, for many years, as folks in

         13  HRA know, I have been working side-by-side with the

         14  people with AIDS community and HASA clients, and in

         15  the last year -- well, it goes back to the beginning

         16  of the Giuliani Administration when Mayor Giuliani

         17  tried to get rid of the Division of AIDS Services,

         18  which was then the Division of AIDS Services, and we

         19  all came together and were able to stop that, and

         20  that led to Local Law 49, which made it so that

         21  DAS/HASA is a codified agency that the Mayor,

         22  whoever he or she may be, can't with the stroke of a

         23  pen or a whim make it go away, and we said by law

         24  that people with AIDS who are low income deserve and

         25  will get care and attention from the City of New
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          2  York, and we set a standard.

          3                 We found as that law moved forward

          4  that, as was the case with other laws when Mayor

          5  Giuliani was Mayor, it was disregarded. He chose to

          6  demonstrate that he did not care in the most clear

          7  and egregious way possible, you know, and that led

          8  to times where many of us in the room would be at

          9  DAS offices til one or two o'clock in the morning

         10  making sure that people were actually sent out of

         11  their offices with a placement, and that the

         12  placement was a real place. Because we found

         13  sometimes people would be given addresses that did

         14  not exist just to get them out of the office.

         15                 We have thankfully through the hard

         16  work of the community and the AIDS Housing Networks

         17  and Jennifer Flynn and Housing Works and so many

         18  others through the courts moved past those days.

         19                 But like any system, we always have

         20  to be vigilant, because although that problem has

         21  gone and we're no longer charging housing for people

         22  with AIDS on the HRA Commissioner's credit card, not

         23  this Commissioner's credit card, the prior

         24  Commissioner's credit card, as we found out, we have

         25  not reached the place that any of us would want with
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          2  the status of housing and overall care for people

          3  who are HASA clients.

          4                 And what we are finding now is that

          5  people are staying far too long in transitional

          6  housing, and that the connection and discussion and

          7  service that needs to occur to move people out of

          8  transitional into permanent housing is not happening

          9  in the way that I believe it should, we're finding

         10  that the quality of the housing is not I think what

         11  any of us in government would like it to be.

         12                 So, the bills today in this hearing I

         13  think are the next step in our process. Because any

         14  law, Local Law 49, we passed it at that moment and

         15  time knowing what we knew. Now we know more and we

         16  have different information and we need to expand on

         17  that to make the standards clearer, and I guess in

         18  some cases higher to make sure that people are

         19  getting moved out of transitional housing in an

         20  appropriate time, because until somebody with, a

         21  person with AIDS who is a HASA client, gets in

         22  permanent housing, they can't really stabilize their

         23  lives, and without permanent decent housing, if you

         24  can't stabilize your life, you can't then move to

         25  deal with the other challenges in your life and
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          2  stabilize your health so you can move on to stay

          3  well or get well.

          4                 So, I look forward to the discussion

          5  on these bills and making these bills law so we can

          6  have a better process, and the process and system

          7  that people with AIDS in this City deserve, the kind

          8  of process we envision when we wrote Local Law 49

          9  and the kind of process we were working for when we

         10  stayed at those HASA offices til 2:00 in the

         11  morning, and I look forward to the day when we talk

         12  about people staying in transitional housing for a

         13  year as the bad old days, just like we talk about

         14  the bad old days when we had to stay in the offices

         15  til midnight or 2:00 in the morning.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         18  much, Council member.

         19                 Commissioner, we welcome you, and we

         20  welcome your testimony.

         21                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: Good morning.

         22  As you all know, I'm Verna Eggleston, the

         23  Administrator and the Commissioner of the Human

         24  Resources Administration, and Department of Social

         25  Services for the City of New York. And to go back to
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          2  earlier testimony, HRA is center in the AIDS and HIV

          3  struggle and has been since the beginning of this

          4  epidemic, and HASA is actually a small unit at HRA

          5  where is the center of the point where clients enter

          6  to receive many types of services, and that would be

          7  one of our entry doors.

          8                 I want to start by thanking you for

          9  the opportunity to discuss our service enhancements

         10  for clients who are infected and affected by HIV and

         11  AIDS under the Bloomberg Administration.

         12                 I'm joined by several members of my

         13  senior staff today, Pat Smith, First Deputy

         14  Commissioner, Iris Hernandez, My Executive Deputy

         15  Commissioner of the Medical Insurance and Community

         16  Services Administration, where HASA was recently

         17  moved, and my Chief of Staff David Hansel who sits

         18  on the Commission, that the Mayor has joined under

         19  the leadership of Dr. Tom Frieden.

         20                 Unfortunately, Elsie Del Compo, my

         21  Deputy Commissioner of AIDS Services Administration

         22  is ill and unable to be here today.

         23                 I am as well ill, I'm sitting here

         24  struggling with a temperature, but I was hell-bent

         25  and determined to be at this hearing this morning in
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          2  these Chambers, because I didn't want it to be

          3  perceived by anyone that this issue is not important

          4  enough, whether I'm sick or well the battle goes on.

          5                 I asked that the others be present

          6  here today, because the issue of HIV and AIDS

          7  remains critical in our City and must be presented

          8  to you today from many perspectives, not just from

          9  one small unit.

         10                 First, I want to acknowledge and

         11  thank two members of the Council who I have not only

         12  known for many years but work with on this issue for

         13  many years, Council Member Phil Reed, who

         14  unfortunately can't be with us here today, and

         15  Christine Quinn, who have been tireless advocates

         16  since the beginning of this epidemic.

         17                 Last year Council Member Quinn asked

         18  us and challenged us to review our reporting methods

         19  on HASA services right here in this Chamber, and we

         20  welcome the feedback.

         21                 And I'm happy to know, Council

         22  member, that you followed up with us and worked with

         23  us on those specific recommendations.

         24                 Further, we modeled COMSTAT many

         25  years ago when we introduced JobStat at HRA, and
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          2  have found the effectiveness of JobStat to look at

          3  all of our policies throughout the entire agency

          4  where we serve 3 million people.

          5                 Eight years ago the Council took an

          6  important step to ensure that New York City would

          7  never abandon its commitment to serving people with

          8  HIV and AIDS by passing Local Law 49. I still

          9  applaud that.

         10                 The introduction of Local Law 49 at

         11  the time, I was merely an advocate in the community

         12  working on this and not working as the Commissioner

         13  of HRA. That law created a framework for HRA's AIDS

         14  services, which have grown and expanded over the

         15  years.

         16                 As the epidemic has changed, that the

         17  lives of people with AIDS have changed, our services

         18  have also changed. While we all know more about this

         19  epidemic, we have never stopped trying to serve our

         20  clients better. I thank the sponsors of these new

         21  bills for their recognition of the need for amending

         22  Local Law 49, and we look forward to working with

         23  you to do that.

         24                 Even as we face the uncertainty of a

         25  possible new strain of HIV, we cannot be pulled back
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          2  from what we've learned, experienced and achieved in

          3  serving the people with AIDS.

          4                 A little over a year ago I moved HASA

          5  under the umbrella of our MICSA Unit, which also

          6  includes New York City's Medicaid program. My

          7  primary goal was to make available as many services

          8  as possible to clients in one Department.

          9                 Most importantly, we need to ensure

         10  that clients' primary medical needs were met so that

         11  they could remain stable in their community.

         12                 The collaboration between HASA and

         13  MICSA will provide many benefits to our clients, and

         14  my Executive Deputy Commissioner Iris Hernandez will

         15  describe some of those to you.

         16                 But as we have increased the emphasis

         17  on access to medical care, we also improved access

         18  to basic benefits and housing.

         19                 This past December the court

         20  monitoring order in the Henrietta D case which had

         21  applied to HASA for three years expired. This showed

         22  the progress we had made in the timely provision of

         23  benefits, but in no way affects our commitment to

         24  full compliance with Local Law 49.

         25                 We look forward to discussions with
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          2  you about the specific provisions in the three bills

          3  before you today. But we're happy to see that the

          4  bills as a whole focus on the achievement of service

          5  outcomes for HASA clients, rather than on the

          6  process HASA uses to do its work.

          7                 We, too, have increased our emphasis

          8  on outcomes in HASA, as in all HRA services and on

          9  the use of outcome data to enhance our programs.

         10                 As you know, we collect and report to

         11  the Council detailed data on HASA services. I look

         12  forward to working with you to redesign the

         13  reporting requirements to Local Law 49 as proposed

         14  by Intro. 541.

         15                 If we collaborate to shift the focus

         16  from process to outcomes, we can develop more

         17  meaningful reports that accurately reflect the work

         18  we do for HASA clients, and that satisfies the

         19  oversight responsibilities of your Committee.

         20                 HASA has always been essential to the

         21  stability of HASA clients. And two of the bills

         22  you're   considering address housing needs.

         23                 HASA has developed and will soon

         24  implement a single point of access system to track

         25  client referrals and placements in housing
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          2  facilities.

          3                 One of the biggest challenges in

          4  effective placement into non-emergency housing is

          5  matching existing vacancies which individual client

          6  services needs. I'm glad to see that you support our

          7  efforts to connect clients with appropriate

          8  non-emergency housing whenever possible.

          9                 By meeting clients where they are, we

         10  can make more effective referrals to housing that

         11  provide the specific support services that are

         12  needed.

         13                 My Executive Deputy Commissioner Iris

         14  Hernandez will continue with our testimony, with a

         15  more detailed account. Under normal circumstances,

         16  given the way I feel, I'm telling you after my

         17  testimony I would ask to be excused. But I'm very

         18  interested today to hear the testimony of the

         19  customers who have gathered here today who have

         20  important messages to deliver, so I'm going to sit

         21  here and I'm going to hear each and every one of

         22  them today.

         23                 Iris.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: We appreciate

         25  that, Commissioner. And drink lots of fluids.
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          2                 Go ahead. Thank you.

          3                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  HERNANDEZ: Hi.

          5                 Let me share with you some of the new

          6  initiatives that HASA intended to improve service

          7  outcomes for our clients.

          8                 As the Commissioner stated, the first

          9  step in aligning HASA to better serve its client

         10  population was placing HASA in January 2004 within

         11  the umbrella of MICSA to further enhance HRA's

         12  ability to help clients with HIV/AIDS access

         13  health-related benefits and services.

         14                 Some examples of how MICSA medical

         15  expertise is enhancing service at HASA includes a

         16  recent pilot underway between HASA and the Health

         17  and Hospitals Corporation COBRA program. The goal of

         18  that particular initiative is to ensure a better

         19  coordination of case management for our shared

         20  clients.

         21                 Representatives from Medicaid Special

         22  Needs plans are located at our HASA centers now, and

         23  provide information about benefits and service plans

         24  designed specifically for people with HIV and AIDS.

         25                 As the Council is aware, last August
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          2  HASA opened its first model office. The driving

          3  principal behind the model offices develop a

          4  client-focused environment by streamlining the work

          5  flow and service delivery, reducing the wait time

          6  for our clients, and providing either greater access

          7  to services and enhancing the accountability of our

          8  staff so that we can best produce positive outcomes

          9  and address the needs of our client population.

         10                 Some of the technological

         11  enhancements developed for the model office and

         12  service line, the gateway to services and programs,

         13  include a call distribution system to reduce wait

         14  time, provide information in English, Spanish,

         15  Haitian, Creole, Russian and Mandarin.

         16                 There are approximately 2,500 calls

         17  monthly to our service line, and it now has an

         18  automated queuing and routing system that tracks the

         19  amount of time that each client has to wait in the

         20  queue, and ensures that we expeditiously meet the

         21  client's need.

         22                 This kind of data allows HASA to

         23  tailor its service delivery to ensure that clients

         24  are seen quickly and that staff can identify all

         25  clients' needs, requiring future appointments and
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          2  that those can be addressed immediately, eliminating

          3  the need for multiple return visits.

          4                 HRA is slated to open another series

          5  of model offices in the months ahead, in Queens, in

          6  the Bronx, et cetera.

          7                 As part of restructuring of HASA, HRA

          8  performed a broader examination of the full range of

          9  clients' needs. This resulted in the development and

         10  implementation of client-focused initiatives, aimed

         11  at enhancing services for the HIV/AIDS populations,

         12  with the goal of producing positive client outcomes.

         13                 These initiatives are directed at

         14  increasing our clinical capacity, facilitating

         15  better access to benefits, increasing the spectrum

         16  of health-related services, and providing vocational

         17  opportunities.

         18                 In August 2004, we assigned a

         19  clinical mental health professional to the service

         20  line process intake unit to assess homeless clients'

         21  mental health needs, and when necessary, refer them

         22  to appropriate services.

         23                 The clinical assessment is then

         24  incorporated into the client service plan so that

         25  all services, ranging from benefits to health care
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          2  to permanent supportive housing take into account

          3  the mental health needs of the client.

          4                 Credentialed alcohol and substance

          5  abuse counselors now staff all HASA offices and

          6  service lines to address the substance abuse needs

          7  of our clients, so that they can maintain permanent

          8  housing and live longer and better lives.

          9                 This initiative is aimed at

         10  identifying HASA clients with substance abuse

         11  problems, and assisting them in securing treatment

         12  to improve the quality of their life.

         13                 To facilitate access to disability

         14  benefits for eligible clients, specially trained

         15  staff from HRA's customized assistance services

         16  programs, have been placed at each HASA center.

         17                 This staff will assist clients with

         18  the Social Security application process, and

         19  facilitate any required appeals to secure benefits

         20  that will reduce their reliance on public assistance

         21  and create financial stability for our clients.

         22                 HASA clients are increasingly

         23  interested in returning to work. We have created a

         24  dedicated state-of-the-art space within our model

         25  office for vocational rehabilitation and employment

                                                            29

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  services where clients have opportunity to identify

          3  and address barriers to employment, receive

          4  vocational counseling, skilled training and resume

          5  preparation.

          6                 Part of redesigning our offices

          7  around necessary services was identifying services

          8  that would ease the burden of HASA clients of having

          9  to revisit our centers.

         10                 Specifically we embarked on two pilot

         11  initiatives to ease the recertification requirements

         12  for HASA benefits. These initiatives were

         13  successful, and we have implemented them

         14  agency-wide. The annual recertification for family

         15  cases is now performed in the family's home. Case

         16  managers collect documents and forms necessary

         17  during their monthly family visits. Four-thousand

         18  families so far have benefitted from this

         19  initiative, alleviating the need for them to bring

         20  their children to the HASA offices and arrange for

         21  child care for their recertification visit.

         22                 Singles receiving, single adult

         23  receiving SSI benefits and enhanced rental

         24  assistance through public assistance, now can renew

         25  their cases every two years instead of annually
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          2  through a mail-in process. This initiative reduces

          3  unnecessary visits to the HASA centers, but more

          4  importantly, it increases the continuity of

          5  benefits.

          6                 Approximately 4,500 HASA clients have

          7  benefitted from this modification.

          8                 And now I'd like to talk a little bit

          9  about the improvements in emergency housing.

         10                 HASA has undertaken various

         11  initiatives to improve the quality and services

         12  offered in emergency housing.

         13                 HASA has strengthened the operation

         14  of its inspection unit. Since January 2004,

         15  inspections of commercial SROs have been conducted

         16  quarterly with the protocol for placing facilities

         17  on non-referral status and discontinuous status. If

         18  a facility is found to contain deficiencies, HASA

         19  requires the submission of a corrective action plan.

         20  Follow-up inspections are conducted from two weeks

         21  to 90 days, depending on the level of the problem,

         22  to verify that the efficiency has been remedied.

         23                 In 2004, 19 facilities were put on

         24  discontinuous status, and six were put on

         25  non-referral status. Our enhanced inspection and
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          2  enforcement system has resulted in the elimination

          3  of the marginal commercial SRO providers. Our

          4  emergency housing system now utilizes only 51 SRO

          5  facilities down from 72.

          6                 HASA recently concluded a round of

          7  negotiations with all commercial SROs to create

          8  memorandas of understanding, to raise accommodation

          9  standards, and require linkages with community-based

         10  organizations to provide support services to HASA

         11  clients in these facilities.

         12                 The MOUs also memorialize the

         13  inspection protocols and require same day critical

         14  incident reporting.

         15                 At the completion of the MOU PROCESS

         16  in the end of calendar year 2004, we had negotiated

         17  the SRO rates to an average of $55 per night.

         18  Furthermore, all facilities had written linkage

         19  agreements with community-based organizations and we

         20  added the monitoring of the CBO presence in the

         21  facilities, into the HASA inspection process.

         22                 Finally, the MOUs formally eliminate

         23  the 28-day client relocation policy in the

         24  commercial SROs. HRA is also reviewing the viability

         25  of developing contracts with the commercial SRO
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          2  providers to afford HASA the advantage of greater

          3  accountability, while allowing for the need-based

          4  flexibility in emergency housing units.

          5                 Moving toward the goal of

          6  establishing contractual relationships with

          7  emergency housing providers, HRA issued in the first

          8  week of February a 30-day returnable request for

          9  information to SRO and community-based providers

         10  seeking ideas on how to develop the best contractual

         11  model for delivering quality emergency housing

         12  services.

         13                 The goals of the RFI are to promote

         14  certain services that are essential to placing and

         15  maintaining our clients in housing, and the best

         16  model and practices that would be afforded through

         17  the RFI.

         18                 Single point of entry is one of the

         19  many ideas and initiatives that we have been working

         20  on for the past 18 months in HASA.

         21                 As Commissioner Eggleston pointed out

         22  earlier, HASA has already developed and is in the

         23  process of implementing a non-emergency housing

         24  placement and tracking process that is cogent,

         25  comprehensive, sets realistic and sustainable
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          2  benchmarks, emphasizes accountability, and offers

          3  clients a better mechanism to supportive housing.

          4                 The single point of access system

          5  will achieve two immediate primary goals, reduce the

          6  time involved in moving the client from emergency

          7  housing to non-emergency supportive housing, and

          8  target placement to the client's need and the

          9  current level of functioning.

         10                 Upon a client's request for emergency

         11  housing, a designated team comprised of social

         12  service and eligibility staff utilize an on-line

         13  case book system, or factor system, to determine

         14  whether a client needs emergency housing placement,

         15  a public assistance application, and if necessary,

         16  assist the client in completing a supportive housing

         17  application in a single day, to determine

         18  eligibility for supportive housing and identify what

         19  services in supportive housing would meet the

         20  client's needs.

         21                 Additional elements of the SPOA that

         22  will be implemented in the coming months include

         23  revising the application to contain more clinical

         24  information for the assessment and conversion of the

         25  housing application to an on-line application
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          2  accessible through our new HASA web.

          3                 Another salient feature of placing

          4  the housing application onto an on-line environment

          5  is that the housing vendor community will gain

          6  ability to access the application via the Internet.

          7                 All information that is recorded by

          8  the vendor on every referral will be visible on HASA

          9  web and the HASA case management and supervisory

         10  staff. The centralized HASA housing unit will manage

         11  the application and make referrals to the applicable

         12  housing vendor based on the client's need and the

         13  current vacancy reports.

         14                 This functionality is scheduled in

         15  place within several months. The success of some of

         16  these housing initiatives, and the attention to the

         17  housing application process can already be seen.

         18                 From January 2004 to January 2005,

         19  the number of HASA clients in commercial SROs has

         20  decreased 25 percent. Those clients in the SRO

         21  system will not have services provided as required

         22  through the MOUs.

         23                 And, finally, our stock of

         24  transitional congregate housing will grow from the

         25  current 625 units of capacity to over 1,000 units by
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          2  the end of Fiscal Year 2007.

          3                 In conclusion, HASA has drawn on a

          4  deep and diverse pool of clients, staff, advocates

          5  and community-based organizations to help plan,

          6  develop and evaluate many of the measures that are

          7  underway and many additional measures as we plan for

          8  the future.

          9                 I hope that the City Council, as it

         10  considers the proposed legislation, will recognize

         11  that all of these initiatives are undertaken with a

         12  strong and unwaivering commitment to providing

         13  quality services and programs to individuals and

         14  families living with HIV and AIDS.

         15                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: I'd like to

         16  add a point, Mr. Chair.

         17                 We provided a map. We mapped out

         18  these very specific Council member districts as it

         19  relates to the density of the illness. And we have

         20  been approaching it in that way, and in many other

         21  ways so that we can, I would imagine, this is one of

         22  those things that we need to engage all, and if we

         23  can look at it in this way, I'm encouraged that

         24  Council Member Gioia who has the least amount of

         25  density in his area would cross over and join this

                                                            36

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  battle to move this service to a place that we can

          3  all work with. So I want to thank you, Council

          4  member, for doing that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

          6  Commissioner, and Deputy Commissioner. The map is

          7  very sobering, and if ever there is a need to prove

          8  that this is a Citywide problem, and transcends

          9  every demographic, I think that right there says

         10  everything people need to know. And also, I'm very

         11  sobered by the fact you look at just in one

         12  district, the sheer numbers, I'm sure in one of our

         13  Council districts we have tragically more cases than

         14  in many decent-sized cities in this country, and we

         15  have to be aware again that we are such an

         16  epicenter.

         17                 I wanted to thank you for the

         18  progress that your testimony illustrates. You know,

         19  we in this Committee believe very strongly, in

         20  holding everyone's feet to the fire, and we believe

         21  in setting the bar higher all the time. But it's

         22  also important to commend the progress that you've

         23  made, and I certainly think the reduction in numbers

         24  of folks in the SROs is a very important step

         25  forward, and I thank you for what you've done on
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          2  that front.

          3                 I also think your other efforts to

          4  streamline and make, of all the services we provide

          5  in government, this should be arguably the most

          6  important example of where we try to treat the

          7  client, the customer in the most sensitive and

          8  streamlined and appropriate fashion, and you're very

          9  committed to that.

         10                 What we're seeking to do with these

         11  three pieces of legislation is take another step

         12  forward, and keep the pressure on all of us to

         13  continue moving forward, especially because we know

         14  this problem may not be getting, may not be getting

         15  less prevalent, it may become more of a problem in

         16  the coming years. So, we have to continue to improve

         17  our efforts and call upon all New Yorkers to see it

         18  as a focal point.

         19                 Let me start by asking this, because

         20  I notice in the testimony you expressed a broad

         21  appreciation for what we're doing and a willingness

         22  to work together, but it would help us to have

         23  little more of a sense of some of the specifics, and

         24  before I ask this question, let me welcome Council

         25  Member Gale Brewer of the General Welfare Committee.
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          2                 What is your particular position at

          3  this point on Intro. 535?

          4                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: I'm

          5  encouraged by it. I think it denotes to me that we

          6  heard each other over the course of three years.

          7                 I think the first thing I asked for

          8  when I came into these Chambers three years ago,

          9  when we talked about HIV and AIDS, is that we looked

         10  at Local Law 49, and that jointly we bring it

         11  current.

         12                 My opinion of the delivery of

         13  services at HASA when I arrived was not too far of a

         14  cry from yours. It became a top thing on my agenda.

         15  I think the thing that was most offensive to me was

         16  the way we receive clients at our centralized point,

         17  Eighth Avenue, you were there with the Mayor and I

         18  when we opened that center. That was the beginning.

         19                 I think that I've been very clear in

         20  saying over and over again to the Council, you know,

         21  it's never one size fits all. I went into some of

         22  those locations where HRA did business, and at best

         23  offensive, offended couldn't describe. I saw clients

         24  who were in, often times sometimes by choice,

         25  sometimes by availability, were dealing with medical
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          2  issues in places that weren't conducive for anyone.

          3                 I didn't do it via inspectors or

          4  investigators, I went out there on my own. Some

          5  people who we were doing business with who had a

          6  local law that said these facilities are supposed to

          7  be medically appropriate. There shouldn't be stairs.

          8  You know, I saw a client struggling up stairs, and

          9  immediately went to discontinue doing business.

         10                 The biggest obstacle for us, and I

         11  don't know if you can mandate it, or legislate it,

         12  how do we work with client choice? It's been the

         13  biggest struggle for me in my role.

         14                 At the end of the day, clients will

         15  make the final decision of where they want to stay,

         16  because it's community-based resources available to

         17  them, friends are nearby who can help them, it's a

         18  community they're familiar with. And when I speak to

         19  the many people in the various departments about how

         20  do we assist folk in making the right choice for

         21  themselves, the only recourse for me in my role is a

         22  legal recourse, and that would be an Article 81. Can

         23  you imagine me going through an Article 81 hearing

         24  for clients who decided that this is the bed that

         25  they want, because it's next to the resources that
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          2  they need to deem them to be incompetent or

          3  incapacitated -- having not the capacity to make

          4  decisions about their own.

          5                 So, I think that after we get past

          6  all of our legislative agreements, and we carve out

          7  something that holds government accountable to serve

          8  people in the way that the funding is allocated,

          9  then the next thing we need to entertain is, is how

         10  do we work in communities without community partners

         11  to get clients to choose the things that are best

         12  for all, because there are just some things we can't

         13  regulate or legislate.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well,

         15  Commissioner, we must all be mellowing here in our

         16  old age because I certainly appreciate, I appreciate

         17  what you're saying. I appreciate the instinct behind

         18  it, and I think we agree on the vast majority of

         19  that.

         20                 I think just to add the point, and

         21  I'll be specific on Intro. 535. We have worked

         22  together, and we have worked with other agencies

         23  that this Committee oversees on the perennial

         24  problem of getting government to overcome its own

         25  contradictions. And we all understand the
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          2  bureaucracies are in a sense necessary and by

          3  definition have trouble dealing with individuality.

          4                 And we've tried to constantly improve

          5  the process of things as simple as getting the right

          6  application in the people's hands, getting them the

          7  right kind of technical assistance to fill out the

          8  applications, streamlining, we're all in agreement

          9  on this and you've shown it on a lot of fronts and I

         10  appreciate that.

         11                 So, let me take the specific points,

         12  the two main thrusts of Intro. 535. And one is to

         13  say that within five days of being found eligible

         14  for housing assistance, that HASA clients would have

         15  an application, and the assistance necessary to

         16  complete that application.

         17                 Again, this is an attempt in a

         18  positive way to raise the bar and say, you know, for

         19  the last few years we've all been struggling just to

         20  get the applications to be streamlined and straight

         21  forward and in clear language and get them in

         22  people's hands now, let's go to the next step. Let's

         23  try and create a time line for all of us to ensure

         24  that it happens quickly, and that the help is there.

         25                 So, let me ask you, on that component
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          2  of the bill, what is the Administration's feeling

          3  about that specific provision?

          4                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: I mean,

          5  there's not much that I'm going to disagree with you

          6  and it has nothing to do with the mellowing of age.

          7  It has the reaching, the power of reaching

          8  consensus, when we all want to do the right thing by

          9  the people we serve, that's the bottom line.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: You're not

         11  going to get much struggle with me on this issue,

         12  sir, because I've been on the fray of this battle

         13  too long, so you're not going to get much.

         14                 I think that every assistance we can

         15  provide to our customers to build on the capacity

         16  they come with the best. The thing that we must

         17  always, you must remember that even in that

         18  bureaucratic structure where it's stacked with

         19  16,000 HRA employees, you have to remember as a

         20  Council to give that staff the flexibility to make a

         21  true and a clean assessment of that client where

         22  they are in that day.

         23                 There are too many variables that

         24  clients come to us with, and you don't want to tie

         25  our hands to the point where it's focused on one
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          2  specific issue, when the customer comes to us more

          3  often times with nine. Sometimes the customer might

          4  come to us with, you know, when we talk about

          5  permanency and housing, let's just say as a point,

          6  based on whose judgment? Your notion of permanency

          7  might not necessarily be the customer's notion of

          8  permanency. The customer's notion of permanency

          9  might be can you, HRA, pay the rent for me to stay

         10  with this person who is my family who can best take

         11  care of my common good?

         12                 We don't want to use the rigor of

         13  government, because the rigor of government makes us

         14  to make decisions every day, to use paradigms to

         15  judge whether that relationship with your family is

         16  good enough to secure your health. I don't want to

         17  make those decisions.

         18                 I want the flexibility in my

         19  administration and freedom in my administration to

         20  waive rules that allow me to say, you know what? If

         21  your mom could take you in, and she can give me a

         22  document to prove that you have a contribution of

         23  rent to be made, and I can validate that, I'll issue

         24  to you the grant. That's the kind of flexibility I

         25  want.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Commissioner,

          3  as I say, I think you're preaching to the choir, and

          4  that's a compliment. I think --

          5                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: Well, we're

          6  both singing on the same choir.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: There you go.

          8                 I think you know that a lot of us

          9  believe in activist government, but we certainly

         10  don't believe in the type of micromanagement that

         11  would tie your hands for actually being able to get

         12  things done for clients. I think our thrust has

         13  always been to make sure more and more quickly that

         14  actions are taken on behalf of clients.

         15                 So, let me just point up the second

         16  piece. And I think the way we've constructed Intro.

         17  535 is to give you flexibility. When we say that

         18  within five days of being found eligible, someone

         19  should get an application and the assistance they

         20  need to complete it, that certainly doesn't tie your

         21  hands in terms of how you ultimately work out that

         22  individual's case, and when we say that within 90

         23  days there should be three referrals to appropriate

         24  permanent housing options, again, we're simply

         25  saying we want to make sure the process of moving
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          2  forward, that options are being looked at, and that

          3  people are being given the very choice that you

          4  rightfully talk about, well, I would never

          5  personally be offended if one of those choices were

          6  far superior to the others. In the eye of the

          7  client, that's wonderful. But it's simply saying

          8  rather than individuality becoming an inadvertent

          9  excuse for delay, that we're setting a bar for all

         10  of us to say real options have to be put on the

         11  table within 90 days so we can move the process

         12  forward.

         13                 So, again, do you feel that's a step

         14  in the right direction?

         15                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: I totally

         16  agree.

         17                 When we go beyond that is my point,

         18  and we're running and we're creating a tool to

         19  gauge. My point is, is do not insist that we've

         20  resolved the bureaucracies of government, because

         21  we've given you three adequate referrals and we're

         22  going to gauge whether you went to them. Because the

         23  fact of the matter, at the end of the day the client

         24  has a choice, and the variables that you and I might

         25  come up with that conclude that it was a good
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          2  selection or a good referral, is not leaving the

          3  client their own will to make decisions. You have to

          4  leave us with flexibility enough to meet the client

          5  where they are. We've shown our commitment to that

          6  in this Administration, in all fairness. Work with

          7  me, Council member.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, I don't

          9  want to debate endlessly. I would just make a point,

         10  and I'm going to take your comments to say the

         11  Administration finds some merit in this bill and is

         12  willing to continue constructive conversations. But

         13  what I would say in respect to that is, we have

         14  explicitly not said one referral because we want to

         15  force your hand. We have explicitly not said the

         16  client should be forced against their will.

         17                 We have said get options on the table

         18  and get them on the table in a tight time frame, and

         19  then it's the client, it's the client, we agree with

         20  you entirely, who should be the decision-maker, with

         21  the good advice and counsel of your folks. So, I

         22  think we're all very much on the same page there.

         23                 One last point, just so we understand

         24  the fact of the situation.

         25                 I will start again by commending you,
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          2  you reduced significantly the SRO population; can

          3  you give us a sense today of roughly the time frames

          4  the folks are staying in the SROs as you continue

          5  your work? And if you took your point in time, the

          6  last statistics you have, how many folks have been

          7  staying? Over what percentage stay, for example, you

          8  know, three months? What percentage stay up to six

          9  months? What percentage stay up to a year? Can you

         10  give us a little breakout to inform us of how we

         11  should all move forward on this discussion?

         12                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         13  HERNANDEZ: We've looked at data two years ago where

         14  the average stay at an SRO was approximately 12

         15  months. I'm saying average.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: You said two

         17  years ago.

         18                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         19  HERNANDEZ: Two years ago.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: 2003 data?

         21                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         22  HERNANDEZ: 2003. In 2004, we had made progress and

         23  we were down to about ten months or so, and I think

         24  when we looked at the most recent statistics it was

         25  down to an average nine months.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Do you have any

          3  ability to break out, you were saying roughly 1,500

          4  folks at this moment?

          5                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          6  HERNANDEZ: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Of the current

          8  1,500, do you have any ability to, again, in broad

          9  categories, let's say in quarterly increments, to

         10  break out how many of those 1,500 had been in SRO

         11  housing for one-quarter, two-quarters,

         12  three-quarters? Can you give us some sense of that?

         13                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         14  HERNANDEZ: We probably could do it. I don't have

         15  those statistics with me broken out that way today.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: We'll follow up

         17  with you on that.  But at least for purposes of

         18  discussion today, are you saying the average stay

         19  now is roughly nine months?

         20                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         21  HERNANDEZ: Absolutely.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Which would

         23  suggest that a certain number of people are probably

         24  in the one to six-month range, probably a

         25  significant number.
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          2                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          3  HERNANDEZ: Um-hmm.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: But it also

          5  suggests we still unfortunately have people doing a

          6  year or more?

          7                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          8  HERNANDEZ: Absolutely. That's right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: That's very

         10  helpful.

         11                 And I think we all agree, and if

         12  there is any debate on this, there shouldn't be with

         13  anyone in New York City that a year or more in

         14  emergency housing is not the way we want to go. We

         15  want to make emergency housing a very small part of

         16  our arsenal of what we do to help people.

         17                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  HERNANDEZ: I totally agree.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Very good.

         20                 Let me turn to my colleagues, and,

         21  again, I want to thank all of them for their work on

         22  this issue. I know they have important questions on

         23  the legislation and on the whole subject matter

         24  we're discussing today. Let me first turn to Council

         25  Member Eric Gioia.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Excuse me.

          3  Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you, Commissioner,

          4  for coming down, especially since you're ill today.

          5  I really do appreciate the effort, and I hope you

          6  get better soon.

          7                 My question is actually for the

          8  Deputy Commissioner. You spoke about, is that

          9  correct, Deputy Commissioner?

         10                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         11  HERNANDEZ: Executive Deputy Commissioner.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Pardon me.

         13  Executive Deputy Commissioner, I apologize. No

         14  slight intended.

         15                 You spoke about inspections.

         16                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  HERNANDEZ: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: How many

         19  inspectors does HASA have?

         20                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         21  HERNANDEZ: We have five inspectors in total. There

         22  is one supervisor, and who typically will go to the

         23  field on an as-needed basis, and then we have four

         24  full-time inspectors who visit our emergency housing

         25  units on a quarterly basis.

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: This is five,

          3  including one supervisor. So, it's four and one

          4  supervisor?

          5                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          6  HERNANDEZ: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: And they don't

          8  work in tandem, they work individually?

          9                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  HERNANDEZ: They work individually.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: What training

         12  do they receive?

         13                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         14  HERNANDEZ: They're trained both by our HASA staff,

         15  using the instrument that is used to conduct the

         16  inspection. And they typically are individuals who

         17  have received training as case workers, they've

         18  moved up within the ranks of HRA. So they receive

         19  specifically on the inspection training using the

         20  tool that is used to conduct the inspection.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: When you say

         22  the tool, you mean the protocol you talked about

         23  earlier?

         24                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         25  HERNANDEZ: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: You mean the

          3  check list?

          4                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          5  HERNANDEZ: Yes. It is a check list?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: How long has

          7  this check list been, or protocol, I don't want to

          8  change your language, I want to use the same

          9  language. I have check list, you said protocol.

         10                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         11  HERNANDEZ: There's an inspection document and it's a

         12  comprehensive document. It's actually several, I

         13  think maybe ten pages, and they look for a series of

         14  indicators when they visit the hotels or the units.

         15  So, your question was? I'm sorry.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: I was just

         17  trying to get on the same language.

         18                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         19  HERNANDEZ: Um-hmm.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Can we have a

         21  copy of that?

         22                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         23  HERNANDEZ: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: You don't have

         25  to give it to us right now.
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          2                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          3  HERNANDEZ: Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Is there a

          5  rating system in this document?

          6                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          7  HERNANDEZ: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Good.

          9                 Can you describe it, or do you think

         10  I'm better off seeing the document myself?

         11                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         12  HERNANDEZ: I think it would most helpful if you see

         13  the document, and look at the rating, protocols, et

         14  cetera.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: That's fair

         16  enough. I mean, I'd like to see it, rather than you

         17  have to describe a ten-page document.

         18                 But what I'm getting at is, I mean

         19  there is criteria in place already. I mean, if you

         20  look at Intro. 541, the report card bill, it's

         21  trying to do precisely what you're prescribing what

         22  you do already.

         23                 And I thank you, by the way, for your

         24  testimony, testifying today that in principle we're

         25  on the same page, trying to improve the quality of
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          2  service we're providing.

          3                 Under Intro. 541, the report card

          4  requirement, most of what it would require was

          5  already required under the Henrietta D. case, the

          6  Court Order. This bill I don't believe poses

          7  significant, I don't believe it poses significant

          8  additional burdens, but I'd like to hear your

          9  perspective, or either of your perspectives on it.

         10                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         11  HERNANDEZ: I agree that many of the indicators are

         12  those that we already capture, and are obviously

         13  tools that we use to monitor our progress and create

         14  a sense of accountability.

         15                 There may be some additional

         16  requirements in your bill that we would like to

         17  discuss further with you, but overall we agree that

         18  it's not overly burdensome, given the fact that we

         19  have been collecting this data, and we're doing so

         20  as a tool for our own monitoring of the program.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Well, I'm

         22  really pleased to hear you say that. And I thank you

         23  for that testimony.

         24                 I had this hearing -- I'm sick, too,

         25  by the way. Not as sick --
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          2                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          3  HERNANDEZ: I think I should leave. I don't want to

          4  get this.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Take your

          6  Ecansasia before you come testify.

          7                 You know, I had a hearing two or

          8  three days ago with the Parks Department about --

          9  gosh, I don't know what I call it, ParkStat, or

         10  whatever bill I introduced -- and we had this

         11  discussion where again they were in agreement of

         12  principle, and I said to them, and I'll say to you,

         13  the goal isn't to add a level of -- my goal is not

         14  to add a level of bureaucracy or make it so

         15  difficult for you to do your job, the goal is to

         16  provide better service.

         17                 Part of my theory on government, one

         18  of the ways we can provide better service is to make

         19  all this stuff public. There are report cards. And

         20  when I alluded to COMSTAT earlier, some of the

         21  things that's most appealing to me about COMSTAT is

         22  that I can get on, I can walk into any library, or I

         23  can walk into the computer in the lounge at City

         24  Hall, and I could log on and I could tell you how

         25  many cars were stolen in Bayside last month, I can
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          2  tell you how many, you know, houses were broken into

          3  in Woodside, I don't think any, by the way, but my

          4  point is I can find that out like that. And that's

          5  the point of this, in my view, is I like the idea of

          6  a completely transparent government, and that we

          7  look and we say, in other words, if we say this park

          8  is clean and you get on line and it says it's clean,

          9  I'm looking out my window. This park is not clean.

         10  Well, I'm going to call somebody up and then we're

         11  going to have accountability. The same with this

         12  bill. We're going to put a report card on line and a

         13  client is going to say to me when they come into my

         14  office, and they say I live in this place, it is

         15  terrible, and I'm going to look at my computer and

         16  it's either going to say, your report card is going

         17  to say it is terrible and we're working on it, or

         18  it's going to say, you know, it got the stamp of

         19  approval and then we'll have that dialogue and we'll

         20  see that there's a disconnect between what I'm

         21  hearing, what we're seeing and what the report card

         22  says.

         23                 So I'm pleased to hear, I'm

         24  encouraged to hear very much your principal

         25  agreement with it, and I'm happy to have that
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          2  dialogue in the coming weeks about how we can

          3  fine-tune it. Again, the goal is not to be a burden

          4  to you but to actually come up with some model of

          5  government that works better for everybody. So, I'm

          6  quite pleased to hear you say that.

          7                 Do you have any other specific

          8  concerns about Intro. 541?

          9                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  HERNANDEZ: No. No.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: It's a lovefest

         12  here today. But I'm looking forward then to have

         13  that dialogue between our staffs, and passing that

         14  bill very soon.

         15                 I'm going to pass on to my

         16  colleagues. I'll let you know if I have any more

         17  questions.

         18                 Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         20  Council member.

         21                 Council Member Chris Quinn.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         23                 I have questions in a couple of

         24  different areas. I just want to, for the record,

         25  just be clear.
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          2                 Commissioner Eggleston, you stated

          3  that, you know, the Court Ordered monitoring as it

          4  related to Henrietta D had ended. That ended, I just

          5  wanted to make sure --

          6                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: It expired.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: It expired,

          8  right. So, it wasn't that we met a threshold of a

          9  performance which released us from the monitoring,

         10  the monitoring was for a set period of time, I think

         11  three years, and three years have expired.

         12                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: Well, why

         13  don't I let my attorney here explain the legal

         14  detail of it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay.

         16                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: Okay.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: We could have

         18  brought over another chair.

         19                 You do need to identify yourself.

         20                 MR. BAILEY: I'm Bob Bailey. I'm an

         21  attorney with HRA, and deeply familiar with the

         22  Henrietta D monitoring provisions and the period of

         23  monitoring. And it's true that the order, the

         24  compliance order did expire because it was

         25  originally written as a three-year compliance order,
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          2  but the plaintiffs could, if they wanted to, have

          3  sought to extend that compliance order, and they

          4  didn't, and there's a reason that they didn't,

          5  because there was no basis to seek an extension

          6  because of the improvements in performance.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Sir, with all

          8  due respect to you as a lawyer, I think you'll

          9  appreciate this, some of them will testify later, so

         10  let's let them speak for themselves about why they

         11  did or didn't do things. I mean, I hear your point,

         12  but I just don't think since they're in the room we

         13  should speak for them. It's really just a technical

         14  question, it was a three-year time frame and it

         15  expired?

         16                 MR. BAILEY: I'm just giving you my

         17  opinion as an attorney, who was there in many

         18  conferences involving that compliance order. And I

         19  think that gives me the ability to speculate about

         20  why there was no motion to extend the order.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Then you should

         22  say you're speculating. You shouldn't say they

         23  didn't do something because as a matter of fact.

         24  They will speak to the facts as they see them. I

         25  appreciate your characterization.
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          2                 So, could you restate your

          3  characterization and your belief on why they did

          4  something?

          5                 MR. BAILEY: In my opinion, HASA had

          6  improved its performance in all the areas covered by

          7  the compliance order to such a degree that the

          8  magistrate judge who enforced the compliance order

          9  would not have seriously considered any motion to

         10  extend that compliance order, and the plaintiff's

         11  lawyers, being very good lawyers, understood that,

         12  and they made no effort to extend the order.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Well, that's

         14  different, though, than what you said to begin with.

         15  What you said to begin with sounded to me like you

         16  were saying they didn't think it was necessary.

         17  That's a different point, and then I'll move on,

         18  than the other side of the case not feeling it was

         19  necessary.

         20                 Frequently judges do things that I

         21  think are right, and frequently judges do things

         22  that the Mayor thinks is wrong. So, that's a

         23  different point, what they thought the judge would

         24  do. People make calculations in legal matters for

         25  other reasons than whether they think it was
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          2  necessary. But I appreciate your characterization

          3  and your clarification that it expired because it

          4  was said, and I will certainly ask the plaintiffs

          5  when they come up to the table.

          6                 I want to go to the Executive Deputy

          7  Commissioner's testimony in a couple of different

          8  areas. You talked, Commissioner, about there being

          9  one mental health professional to conduct the

         10  assessments of the clients who are processed through

         11  the service line; that's correct, right? You said

         12  there is one?

         13                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         14  HERNANDEZ: There's one nurse that's been, a nurse

         15  practitioner, yes, that has been assigned to the

         16  service line. I believe the assignment was in

         17  August. And the goal was --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: August of 2004?

         19                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         20  HERNANDEZ: Of 2004. So, it was relatively recent.

         21  And the goal there was just to begin to collect

         22  information about, more information, about

         23  additional medical information so that we could

         24  begin to think about if we were going to create the

         25  single point of access for housing referrals, we

                                                            62

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  wanted to collect better information to guide us on

          3  what would be the most appropriate type of

          4  non-emergency supportive housing for referrals for

          5  these clients.

          6                 So, this is something that's been

          7  underway for, an initiative that's been underway for

          8  a few months, with the explicit goal of testing

          9  whether or not better information, medical

         10  information, about our clients will help us guide

         11  them in supportive housing.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Are we talking

         13  about the same thing, because I'm a little confused.

         14                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         15  HERNANDEZ: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: On page four,

         17  in August of 2004.

         18                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         19  HERNANDEZ: Right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: The way I read

         21  this, the nurse practitioner, is he or she a nurse

         22  practitioner with a particular focus in mental

         23  health?

         24                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         25  HERNANDEZ: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Did they have

          3  an MSW or CSW or whatever?

          4                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          5  HERNANDEZ: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: This reads to

          7  me, just as I'm understanding it, as though we

          8  assigned a clinical mental health professional, blah

          9  blah blah, to assess homeless clients with mental

         10  health needs, and when necessary refer them to

         11  appropriate services, blah blah blah blah blah. "The

         12  clinical assessment is then incorporated into the

         13  client's service plan so that all services ranging

         14  from benefits to health care to permanent supportive

         15  housing take into account the mental health needs of

         16  the client."

         17                 What you just said sounded to me

         18  like, I might be misunderstanding, as if, and this

         19  is not without merit, that the nurse practitioner is

         20  doing an assessment of the level of need in this

         21  area of your client. So you could then, for argument

         22  sake, add more services then.

         23                 This paragraph reads to me as though

         24  the person is actually responding directly to the

         25  needs expressed by an individual client and then
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          2  adding extra services, because it says it will then

          3  -- is then incorporated into the client's service

          4  plan.

          5                 Just so I understand, this is not

          6  happening --

          7                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          8  HERNANDEZ: Right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: What is

         10  happening is there is a nurse practitioner on the --

         11                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         12  HERNANDEZ: Absolutely. Data is being collected.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But there's no

         14  actual changes or extra services that today or since

         15  August are going to the client, based on this nurse

         16  practitioner's interaction with the service line?

         17                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  HERNANDEZ: In some instances I could tell you the

         19  nurse has been in contact, has made some additional

         20  follow-up contact with clients, and typically it is

         21  where it is unclear, for instance, if the client has

         22  a medical home, if the client has an ongoing

         23  physician that they are seeing, and in those

         24  instances the nurse has made some follow-up contact

         25  with the goal of guiding the client and suggesting
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          2  they should seek to have a permanent medical doctor

          3  who can ensure that they are referred for

          4  appropriate services.

          5                 But in the main --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So that's kind

          7  of above and beyond?

          8                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          9  HERNANDEZ: Right.

         10                 In the main, what we've done to date

         11  is to have, collect information so that we can

         12  design the single point of access and in far more

         13  comprehensive assessment tool, so that as we move

         14  forward, we will be better able to evaluate the

         15  needs of our clients.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: It says mental

         17  health here.

         18                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         19  HERNANDEZ: Um-hmmm.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Is the person

         21  actually doing an assessment of medical --

         22                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         23  HERNANDEZ: Medical and mental.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: -- Health and

         25  mental health?
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          2                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          3  HERNANDEZ: Absolutely.

          4                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: It's more

          5  along the lines of a psychosocial evaluation. You

          6  have to look at all the resources.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And so, really,

          8  it probably would have been more accurate if it said

          9  the clinical assessment -- or no. It should probably

         10  have said the clinical assessment -- we hope the

         11  model will be changed so the clinical assessments

         12  will then be incorporated. Okay.

         13                 When is your projection that the

         14  nurse practitioner will have taken in enough

         15  information to make an assessment about how you need

         16  to change your model, and how much additional

         17  resources will you need to change that model.

         18  Because I think you'll need a lot more than one

         19  person on the telephone if they actually are then

         20  changing somebody's service plan? And does the

         21  Preliminary Budget anticipate that additional money

         22  to put the information the nurse practitioner finds

         23  in action?

         24                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         25  HERNANDEZ: We are in the process of examining the
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          2  data that was collected over the past few months,

          3  and we are, one of the first steps is to retool the

          4  housing application, and the current assessment tool

          5  that we use at service line so that we'll be able to

          6  capture better information and more comprehensive

          7  information, clinical information about our client.

          8  So, that's something that's underway. We actually

          9  have a tool, a draft of a tool and we're looking at

         10  it. And again, we want to be very careful because we

         11  want to benefit from the information that we've

         12  collected over the last few months.

         13                 So, the short answer is that we are

         14  now in the process of developing what we believe

         15  will be a far more comprehensive assessment tool.

         16  And then the goal, the next step would be to

         17  develop, as I mentioned in my testimony, the

         18  tracking system and all the system supports so that

         19  we could better direct, as an outcome of this more

         20  comprehensive assessment, the client to the

         21  appropriate housing.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay, I'm

         23  sorry. But I thought this was about adding in more,

         24  other additional services beyond the housing

         25  placement?
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          2                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          3  HERNANDEZ: Oh, absolutely.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay.

          5                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          6  HERNANDEZ: I mean, once you have a more

          7  comprehensive assessment tool, there will be other

          8  services that will be equally important, in many

          9  instances more important, depending on the housing,

         10  if that particular client does not have a housing

         11  need, then we will, where appropriate, make other

         12  referrals, other services.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: When do you

         14  think the nurse -- when will the nurse practitioner

         15  finish collecting his or her data on the

         16  psychosocial needs of the HASA population?

         17                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  HERNANDEZ: We have concluded the information

         19  gathering portion of what we were doing here.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Can I get a

         21  copy of that information with names redacted so we

         22  can get a sense of what those needs are?

         23                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         24  HERNANDEZ: Um-hmmm.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And so how long
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          2  will your analysis of that collected data take?

          3                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  HERNANDEZ: As I said, we have, over the last couple

          5  of months, as we were collecting data we've also

          6  been on a parallel track, because many of the

          7  changes that we're making we're certainly not taking

          8  a linear path.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right.

         10                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         11  HERNANDEZ: So as we were collecting the data, we

         12  have been retooling our assessment form so that we

         13  can collect more and more data. And the goal would

         14  be to issue a new, far more comprehensive assessment

         15  tool, as we also unveil the single point of entry.

         16                 So, all of these initiatives

         17  hopefully will be implemented within the next six

         18  months to a year.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay. And in

         20  the implementation of the part of this which would

         21  yield greater, you know, psychosocial services,

         22  mental health services, I would assume you're going

         23  to need more mental health, staff and more

         24  resources. So, is it your anticipation that -- I'm

         25  assuming the Executive Budget doesn't have this
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          2  built in -- the Preliminary Budget --

          3                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  HERNANDEZ: No.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: -- Because you

          6  haven't finished it.

          7                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          8  HERNANDEZ: Exactly.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Do you

         10  anticipate that the Executive Budget in the spring

         11  will include the extra resources that are needed to

         12  do this?

         13                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: Yes would be

         14  a simplistic answer. I just want to clarify one

         15  point.

         16                 When you do psychosocial analysis,

         17  it's not limited to mental health support.

         18  Psychosocial analysis in good case management, as I

         19  stated to the Council three years ago, good case

         20  management, to say that we're going to give clients

         21  case management, does not denote that we're going to

         22  sit into a benefit package and issue a grant. Good

         23  case management looks at the resources in the

         24  community, that you have to sustain you in the

         25  community of your choice, everything from housing to
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          2  funding from medication to medical providers to food

          3  to clothing to everything, that's psychosocial

          4  planning and that results in good case management.

          5                 I have to tell you that often times

          6  we can't wait til analysis is done to get this stuff

          7  done. If you look at the configuration of our model

          8  center, the first one on Eighth Avenue, it's very

          9  interactive, as a matter of fact. To say that a

         10  client or a customer, I don't like the word client,

         11  to say that a customer could walk in, come to the

         12  front desk, say I'm so and so, I'm Jane Smith, and

         13  there can be an alert to the worker upstairs on

         14  their computer as a flag so that we can reduce wait

         15  time, and that goes against the computer system, and

         16  we go back to the case file where we left off and

         17  the client is not there for three days waiting for

         18  us to find a paper record, just that we can

         19  electronically alert the worker and it can jump from

         20  one system to the next so that the client is not

         21  told, okay, you come back next week after we find

         22  the worker, because the worker is out with the flu,

         23  but that can jump to the system to the supervisor,

         24  and we can be consistent in our information, those

         25  are all the things that we're working on.
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          2                 But as we know, in government, you

          3  often times have to do pilots so that you can

          4  justify need, but unfortunately, while you're doing

          5  service, you don't have time to sit and do pilots

          6  extensively while folk are being sick, and people

          7  are needing services. So, I have to tell you that

          8  we're doing both simultaneous. So, yes, we're going

          9  to have --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Does the Prelim

         11  include extra resources?

         12                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: Yes

         13  initially.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Oh, okay.

         15                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: I cannot tell

         16  you it's going to be a clinical social worker

         17  assigned to every single client. That is just not

         18  going to happen. We know that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay.

         20                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: Are we going

         21  to try to keep caseloads enough so that we can get

         22  people's needs met? Absolutely. And is this

         23  something that I want to add on? Absolutely. Again,

         24  you can't do it without a pilot.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Great. So if
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          2  you could, just as we move through the budget

          3  process, if your budget folks could identify for the

          4  Council where that unit of appropriation is.

          5                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: Absolutely.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: That would be

          7  helpful.

          8                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: And if you

          9  could support us in that, that would be most

         10  helpful.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: That is not the

         12  question. The question will be whether we think

         13  you've put enough, and whether we will be in a

         14  battle to get more than has been budgeted, I would

         15  anticipate.

         16                 One of the things that you just spoke

         17  to, Commissioner, was certainly a big part of the

         18  testimony, was real time data, the web, et cetera,

         19  my past experience, when I spent more time at HASA

         20  offices than I do lately, was that there were not

         21  really -- there was nothing computer-wise. You know,

         22  it was like literally, opening up the phone book and

         23  flipping onto the H where it said "hotel."

         24  Occasionally I would bring an extra phone book from

         25  my house. So, tell me now what the status
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          2  electronically is at HASA offices? Are all HASA

          3  offices, you know, does every HASA case worker have

          4  a computer? Are they all linked within that office?

          5  Are they linked within the entire HRA system? Are

          6  they linked with vendors? Tell me kind of the status

          7  of the HASA web, so-to-speak.

          8                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: Well, I'm

          9  happy to report that every worker has a computer.

         10  That's very good news.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And they're all

         12  Internet connected?

         13                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: Intranet

         14  connected.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay.

         16                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: Which is very

         17  different.

         18                 But automation, I have to tell you,

         19  current today is one to be proud of. When I talked

         20  about the system just a few minutes ago where a

         21  worker can be signaled that their customer is in the

         22  building is beyond. And a case file can open up is

         23  beyond. But you have to understand, we're doing

         24  many, many systems throughout HRA.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right.

                                                            75

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: You know, we

          3  had received some good feedback from some of our

          4  vendors about the edit system. So, when we do

          5  something, a model like edits, that will allow the

          6  vendor to be in real time with you, is something you

          7  want to roll out across agencies.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right.

          9                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: If you go to

         10  the budgeting again, this is definitely one of those

         11  items that you have to everpresent in budgets

         12  because something like technology, you know, it can

         13  date out as soon as you roll it out.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right.

         15                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: One of the

         16  things that I've been very focused on, you know, to

         17  date we've developed 26 model centers throughout

         18  HRA, you know, with no capital laid out specifically

         19  that this is what you guys are going to do, but

         20  looking at any plans that were laid out maybe ten or

         21  15 years ago, we were going to bring HRA's offices,

         22  whether it's just a bottle of White Out, whatever,

         23  enhancing them, changing them and making sure that

         24  we stay current, so this is ever present on my

         25  agenda. Absolutely.
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          2                 So, the computerization, I have to

          3  tell you, I'm incredibly proud of.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And we should

          5  be very proud of moving HASA into the 21st Century.

          6  But just so I can understand the state of affairs,

          7  all HASA offices, all HASA workers have computers?

          8  All HASA offices are intranet, intranet --

          9                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: Intranet

         10  connected.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Intra-net

         12  connected. Does that mean, and this is going to be

         13  embarrassing to Gale that I'm even asking this

         14  question, does that mean when it's intranet, it

         15  obviously means they can all talk to each other on

         16  Eighth Avenue. Does that also mean that the HASA

         17  office on Eighth Avenue can talk to an office in the

         18  Bronx? Okay --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: They can't

         20  talk to the Naragansit (phonetic).

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right, that was

         22  my next question. But they can't talk to the

         23  Naragansit, or to Housing Works or whomever?

         24                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: Some people

         25  can, but you have to remember, it becomes very, very
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          2  tricky, and this is definitely one of the areas, as

          3  we're looking at it as a City, about confidentiality

          4  and electronic file.

          5                 Show me a true fire wall and I will

          6  send information about a client to Albany. This is a

          7  conversation --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Well, I'm less

          9  concerned about that, Commissioner, just to

         10  interrupt you. What it seems to me more relevant is

         11  that the providers can get you the info on how many

         12  rooms they have or what needs they have. I

         13  understand that point and it's something that needs

         14  to be fully --

         15                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: And that's

         16  exactly where we're going. But you remember, again,

         17  even though, I mean we face administrative directors

         18  where there is some directors where there is some

         19  folk who is telling, you know, you can't put the

         20  name of HASA on a piece of stationery when you refer

         21  somebody out, and that will be the most antiquated.

         22                 Okay, I'm just saying, yes, that's

         23  where we're going.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: When will all

         25  of the -- when will the system be such that
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          2  caseworkers can talk to providers and providers can

          3  talk to HASA about room availability?

          4                 Let's set aside the confidentiality

          5  issue for a second. And that's not to diminish it,

          6  but to say it's a kind of different discussion.

          7  Technologically, when could the Naragansit say to

          8  you we've got three rooms?

          9                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  HERNANDEZ: We're designing a system that will do

         11  exactly what you've described. We're hoping that

         12  we'll have a system to test with a few providers

         13  within three months and then hopefully expand it and

         14  build it and create greater capacity for it within,

         15  you know, the next year.

         16                 Again, you know, the design, we're

         17  trying to ensure that we select the right

         18  information with, you know, total care to

         19  confidentiality, et cetera.

         20                 But the goal would be, in fact, as

         21  you described, Council member, the housing providers

         22  would give us real time vacancy reports, and

         23  occupancy data, and it would allow us to turn around

         24  information in terms of where those vacancies exist

         25  and be able to refer people in a more expeditious
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          2  way.

          3                 So, that is, in fact, what we're

          4  designing.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay, great.

          6                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: Council

          7  member, I just have to keep on the confidentiality

          8  issue.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: No, I hear you

         10  on that.

         11                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: Because it

         12  really becomes an obstacle in our development. I'm

         13  telling you that we could have been here two and a

         14  half years ago, but it becomes an obstacle in our

         15  development when people say to an agency I don't

         16  even want to see your agency's address on a piece of

         17  stationery because it denotes that this client has

         18  this. So, we have to keep it ever present as we

         19  develop technology to help people.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Understood.

         21                 Have all of the HASA workers gone

         22  through computer training, and could we get those

         23  materials?

         24                 On page four, below where we talked

         25  about the nurse practitioner, we talked about the
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          2  Cylar Act (phonetic), for lack of a better way to

          3  try to sum up that acronym. The work that the

          4  alcohol and substance abuse counselors that you talk

          5  about here, is that work that is presently

          6  happening? Or is that work that is anticipated and

          7  is in the assessment stage?

          8                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          9  HERNANDEZ: No, that is presently underway at all of

         10  our locations.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And these

         12  workers assess the needs of every client that

         13  presents, and every client or customer that

         14  processes the service line, has an interaction with

         15  an alcohol and substance abuse counselor?

         16                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  HERNANDEZ: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And how many

         19  placements or service plans or referrals, how ever

         20  you track it, have been resulted, have resulted

         21  because of that interaction?

         22                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         23  HERNANDEZ: We can get you that number. We don't have

         24  it here now, and I'd rather be specific.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And I'm sorry I
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          2  have way too many questions. So let me just ask one

          3  other quick question.

          4                 You, in your testimony, I'm trying to

          5  find a page now, talk about assessing peoples

          6  housing needs, and I was troubled by the language of

          7  the testimony because it made it sound to me as if

          8  there was determinations being made about who didn't

          9  and didn't qualify when they came to the office and

         10  presented as homeless.

         11                 And I understand that HRA is

         12  utilizing the same diversion questionnaire, or a

         13  similar diversion questionnaire to DHS, I would be

         14  troubled if we saw there was any flexibility in our

         15  legal requirement, if somebody, you know, has a

         16  person with AIDS and has that paperwork, and is

         17  homeless, et cetera, that that person has to get

         18  housing and there cannot be an attempt to divert

         19  that person to somewhere else. I'm sorry I can't

         20  find the paragraph right this second.

         21                 So, I just want to make sure we're

         22  all on the same page with that.

         23                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: We're still

         24  on the same page. The goal is the same. And, you

         25  know, thank you most times for being thorough, and I
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          2  apologize that the testimony takes you a different

          3  direction, but that was not our intent.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Great. If I can

          5  find it, I will. And I'm sorry, to my colleagues,

          6  for asking so many questions. Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

          8  Council member.

          9                 Now Council Member Annabel Palma.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you, Mr.

         11  Chair. And first, let me thank you and Council

         12  Member Quinn and Council Member Gioia for these

         13  great pieces of legislation, and I'm surely proud to

         14  have signed onto them and be a sponsor on them.

         15                 Commissioner, as it presently stands,

         16  HASA clients wait 30 or more days to move from

         17  temporary to permanent housing, and while they're

         18  waiting, sometimes we find that landlords get

         19  frustrated with the wait and then end up giving the

         20  apartment away to other applicants who are readily

         21  available to rent the apartments; what is HASA doing

         22  in terms of addressing this issue?

         23                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         24  HERNANDEZ: In fact, the good news is that it's under

         25  30 days now and that we continue to work toward
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          2  reducing the amount of time that it takes to

          3  complete the application and go through the process.

          4                 But we absolutely know that it is

          5  essential for us to reduce those time frames even

          6  further. The good news is that some of the

          7  initiatives and reforms that I described in my

          8  testimony are geared toward reducing those time

          9  frames, and that is why we've undertaken many of

         10  them.

         11                 But as I said, there was a time where

         12  the wait, we understand was even longer, and we know

         13  that where we are today is certainly still too long.

         14  But we are under 30 days, and working toward

         15  reducing it even further.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: And in regards

         17  to private landlords, the ones who get frustrated,

         18  when trying to resolve payment problems with HASA

         19  tenants and then refuse to rent to other HASA

         20  tenants in the future, how is HASA dealing with this

         21  problem? Are we trying to get people to specifically

         22  represent cases for just these issues?

         23                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: It's a

         24  question that needs to be answered in many ways.

         25  When I testified on this issue before, HASA housing,
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          2  you know, I have to go back to client

          3  responsibility, if you will. The biggest struggle

          4  that we have had since doing this is many of our

          5  clients have other sources of income, i.e., Social

          6  Security, and they have a responsibility to pay

          7  rent. And one of the things that the landlords don't

          8  understand is we do not have the authority to put

          9  liens on anyone's Social Security benefits to force

         10  them to pay rent.

         11                 Many of the landlords grow frustrated

         12  and often times want to route that client into our

         13  other benefit system as an emergency rent payment

         14  and want to start various types of proceedings and

         15  makes it very difficult for us to go back to those

         16  very same landlords to take the group of people who

         17  we're advocating for.

         18                 It's tricky, I can tell you that, the

         19  way that I've addressed this specific issue, since

         20  I've been in my administration as I pretty much

         21  directed my staff. You know, forget the interception

         22  of SSI benefits at the time, pay the rent and keep

         23  the people stable, but it doesn't change the mindset

         24  of the landlord who wants to, you know, HRA to do

         25  everything from being the primary responsible person
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          2  on the lease, and legally we can't do that.

          3                 I can't engage in a lease agreement

          4  with a landlord on behalf of a client. That would

          5  make me personally responsible for the rent. So, I

          6  think it's many types of variations, and we try to

          7  explain this to landlords all the time. It makes it

          8  difficult for us to secure other apartments that the

          9  landlord owns because of that. But, you know, we

         10  cannot intercept someone's SSI check to, you know,

         11  take responsibility of the check and make them pay

         12  rent. It's just you can't do that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: But it's safe

         14  to say there's some sort of communications, or

         15  mechanism in place to let the landlords know that

         16  these issues may come up and then something in place

         17  to help these clients find themselves then in

         18  trouble and unable to make payments?

         19                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: Absolutely.

         20  But as I said earlier, is that the landlord would

         21  have us to engage, or have me be responsible for the

         22  lease agreement. I mean, I cannot sign a lease on

         23  behalf of a customer that I'm going to make sure

         24  that this customer pays rent.

         25                 Our intervention has been in the past
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          2  where we issue an emergency grant when the person is

          3  at risk of losing their apartment because they

          4  didn't pay the rent out of their check.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Okay.

          6                 And you also mentioned there was a 25

          7  percent decrease in residents in SRO. Can you tell

          8  me when this happened, what time period was -- did

          9  this decrease represent?

         10                 And the way I understand it is that

         11  the number of residents and SROs has been changed

         12  this year.

         13                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         14  HERNANDEZ: No, it absolutely has over the last 12

         15  months. It has decreased by 25 percent, and we have

         16  that data. We track that data very closely.

         17                 So, in fact, the good news is that

         18  people not only are staying longer in the SROs, but

         19  that we have fewer clients that are using the SROs.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Okay, thank

         21  you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Council Member

         23  Brewer.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         25  much. And I have a couple of follow-up computer
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          2  questions, and then also on the housing.

          3                 One of the computer questions is that

          4  I think you are correct in trying to figure out a

          5  way maybe to use for your single point of access,

          6  but just to know what are the buildings in New York

          7  City, where are some of the services? I call them

          8  the base map issues, because I happen to know there

          9  is a base map.

         10                 So, I'm wondering if you are -- I

         11  think that would help you. That's not a confidential

         12  issue. That's a whole other Ester Fuchs Gabby, you

         13  know, integrated human services network question, so

         14  I'm not asking about that. Just the basics. Now, I

         15  know that the University of Missouri is essentially

         16  going to be working with you on that, so I'm

         17  wondering why you can't use the City's base map.

         18  Gino Menchini should provide that information, and

         19  that you don't need to contract with the University

         20  of Missouri.

         21                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: Well,

         22  actually we're working with Ester Fuchs on the

         23  integrated --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: That's

         25  integrated.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: But I'm

          4  talking more about the other --

          5                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: Right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: University of

          7  Missouri.

          8                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: In terms of

          9  using the University of Missouri, I mean I have many

         10  conversations with Commissioner Menchini, and the

         11  fact of the matter remains is that HRA has probably

         12  some of the strongest systems and we sustain other

         13  agencies, so it's not improbable or impossible, and

         14  we're doing all of these things right now as we

         15  speak, to create that centralized database, as you

         16  suggested, where we can have vendors pool in and we

         17  can extract from, and that's all a part of that

         18  single entry, get the information.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Yes, I'm

         20  familiar with it. I'm just saying, I believe that a

         21  lot of the material that you need is here in New

         22  York and that we don't necessarily need a contract

         23  with the University of Missouri. I know it hasn't

         24  been signed yet. I'm very familiar with that, maybe

         25  nobody else knows about it.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: But the fact

          4  of the matter is, it does seem to me that could be

          5  something that we could work internally with and not

          6  spend more money for data that the University of

          7  Missouri would have to get from us and then sell

          8  back to the City of New York.

          9                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: You're

         10  absolutely right.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So I'd like to

         12  cancel that contract, and I'd be glad to work with

         13  you to make sure that we have material from DoITT.

         14                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So that's a

         16  deal?

         17                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: You're

         18  absolutely right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         20  much. Good-bye University of Missouri.

         21                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: Well, I said

         22  you're absolutely right.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. We'll

         24  work on it together.

         25                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: You're
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          2  absolutely right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.

          4                 The other question I have is, it

          5  looks excellent that you're doing this single point

          6  of access for non-emergency supportive housing. I

          7  just wanted to know what stage is that, you know,

          8  and who is contributing to the development and the

          9  timetable?

         10                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         11  HERNANDEZ: As I said earlier, some of the design is

         12  already underway.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right.

         14                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         15  HERNANDEZ: It's a collaboration between HASA staff

         16  and HRA and my S staff. So, as I said, the design is

         17  well underway and we hope to have something to test

         18  with a provider within three months and then beyond

         19  that we would expand it.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay, I'm

         21  sorry to ask that again.

         22                 The other question I have in terms of

         23  housing. This is more not an HRA question but an

         24  overall administration question. I know to your

         25  credit you're trying to cut down on the number of
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          2  private emergency units, and when you do that and

          3  you move out of a private emergency unit building,

          4  those units remain in the building and it's my

          5  experience that they're often sitting there for

          6  awhile vacant. Maybe there's a gentrifying, you

          7  never know. It's not your problem. But you know

          8  what? It is Shawn Donovan's problem. Somebody should

          9  be stating to Shawn Donovan, look, we have some

         10  units there, let's send in Michael Bosnick from the

         11  unit that works with owners and rent as permanent

         12  housing to other individuals, or even back to some

         13  of yours who already, whom you deem appropriate;

         14  does that conversation take place? I know buildings

         15  where this is going on. That's why I'm asking. But

         16  it could take place?

         17                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: Absolutely.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. Because

         19  that would be another place to provide permanent

         20  housing. Again, it's not your issue, but it should

         21  be the Administration's issue.

         22                 And then we all hear so much about

         23  what's going on in Washington, in terms of federal

         24  cuts to housing, and I know that -- does that impact

         25  you in any way? Obviously, I think there's been a

                                                            92

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  slight decrease in terms of some of the HASA funding

          3  from the budget this year, compared to the past, and

          4  it might be because you don't have any federal

          5  matches, I don't know.

          6                 But I was just wondering in terms of

          7  federal dollars, this will obviously come up more

          8  specifically when we have the budget hearings.

          9                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DONO:

         10  Hi. My name is Frank Dono. I am the Executive Deputy

         11  Commissioner for Finance.

         12                 Right now as the budget stands there

         13  are no cuts to the housing, the HASA housing budget,

         14  anticipated either for this year or for next.

         15                 In fact, we're looking at trying to

         16  increase that budget where we can. We're working on

         17  a new needs request for OMB.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. And are

         19  there federal impacts as a result of what we -- I

         20  mean, you know better than I, in terms of CDBG or

         21  any other programs that are Section 8, et cetera, I

         22  know they impact the Housing Authority tremendously

         23  and so on, but maybe they don't impact you.

         24                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DONO:

         25  No, we are currently assessing what those impacts
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          2  are for HRA. I can tell you that on the HASA side,

          3  that's something that obviously we're very concerned

          4  about, and we want to make sure that we maintain

          5  whatever stability there for the payments for

          6  Section 8 and so on.

          7                 One thing I think that we're

          8  currently working on is the HOPWA budget. As you

          9  know, that's something that nationwide is a concern,

         10  and so we want to be sure that we're maintaining our

         11  fair share of the HOPWA allocation from the feds to

         12  New York City and the metropolitan area.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: We still don't

         14  know the final federal impact of that?

         15                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DONO:

         16  No, not yet.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

         18                 And then over the years we've never

         19  been able to move so easily emergency and

         20  non-emergency housing dollars, and I assume that's

         21  still an issue. The feds have never allowed us to do

         22  that, et cetera. Is that still impossible to move

         23  money from one to the other?

         24                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DONO:

         25  It's not impossible. It is still a challenge, and in
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          2  fact, we do address it every day.

          3                 To date we have not yet had to move

          4  the permanent money into the temporary emergency

          5  pool as yet. But we are trying to figure out how

          6  much we may need to move if that were the case.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. Of

          8  course, we would always love to be able to move

          9  emergency into permanent.

         10                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DONO:

         11  Absolutely.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: That's also a

         13  challenge, I assume?

         14                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DONO:

         15  Indeed.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. Thank

         17  you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         19  Council Member. I want to go back to Council Member

         20  Chris Quinn for one last question.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: When a client

         22  is transgendered, what is the protocol that you use

         23  for placement and the determination there?

         24                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: I want to

         25  have, there's two sides to that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay.

          3                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BRAWNY:

          4  Good morning. I'm Matthew Brawny, Assistant Deputy

          5  Commissioner for HASA.

          6                 And with respect to an individual who

          7  identifies as transgendered, within Factors, which

          8  is our on-line case book, one of the what we call

          9  assessments is for an individual who does identify

         10  as being transgendered, who needs to go into the

         11  emergency housing portfolio.

         12                 In that instance, besides ensuring

         13  medically appropriate housing, we will ensure that

         14  that individual has a private bathroom.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Restate that

         16  again, what you said, Commissioner.

         17                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BRAWNY:

         18  Within the Factors On-Line Case Management

         19  Assessment, what we use for individuals who are

         20  coming in who are identifying as homeless --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Yes.

         22                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BRAWNY:

         23  Additionally for an individual who identifies as

         24  being transgendered, we also will capture that

         25  information in Factors, and ensure that besides
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          2  having a medically appropriate accommodation, that

          3  that person also has private facilities, in terms of

          4  having a private bathroom.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I should know

          6  this, but when folks get sent to SROs, are there

          7  ever, or other temporary placements, are there ever,

          8  you know, female floors or male floors or things

          9  like that, or is it always kind of a traditional

         10  co-ed kind of a thing.

         11                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BRAWNY:

         12  Traditionally it's more of a co-ed arrangement.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, if there

         14  was a situation where, or maybe these just don't

         15  come up, where even if there was a shelter, there is

         16  female shelter, male shelter, et cetera, and that

         17  has been a very much, very very much an ongoing

         18  issue at the Department of Homeless Services, and

         19  the transgendered community.

         20                 So, there is no over -- there is no

         21  similarity or something like that that relates to

         22  HASA or anything where a determination is made

         23  beyond making sure somebody has a private bathroom,

         24  which is a very, very good thing, and I want to

         25  support the agency in that very, very much. But
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          2  nothing else similar to the challenges, I'll call

          3  them, we've had with DHS?

          4                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BRAWNY:

          5  Not presently.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay.

          7                 Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          8                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: The other

          9  part to that is, is last year I asked about ten

         10  different organizations to join me in a special

         11  panel at HRA to look at transgender issues across

         12  the board in all social services areas, so that I

         13  could take those various recommendations to

         14  different commissioners throughout the City who

         15  provide human services, just various concerns, and

         16  Richard Burns, of the Gay and Lesbian Community

         17  Center heads up that committee and to date they have

         18  gathered, to say interesting data would be

         19  understatement, but I could tell you were they

         20  active in doing work around all human services for

         21  all transgender people around the City of New York.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         24  much, Commissioner, and to all your team. We much

         25  appreciate your testimony, and we look forward to
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          2  working closely to move all three pieces of

          3  legislation into law. Thank you very much.

          4                 COMMISSIONER EGGLESTON: Thank you,

          5  sir.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Next panel is

          7  folks who are on the front line, clients and

          8  providers who I think can tell us more than anyone

          9  what we need to do to keep improving our approach to

         10  helping those in need.

         11                 I'd like to call up Adrian Tolbert,

         12  Demore Brockenberry and Willis Kattrell.

         13                 Okay, who would like to begin? Please

         14  state your name, and we welcome your testimony. And

         15  bring the microphone closer. That will make your

         16  life easier. That moves, and you'll push the button

         17  and see the green light on below.

         18                 MR. BROCKENBERRY: Is that it?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Yes, it is.

         20                 MR. BROCKENBERRY: Good morning. My

         21  name is Demore Brockenberry. Good morning, ladies

         22  and gentlemen. Esteemed members of the Council, good

         23  morning. I am here as a supervisor of HRA-funded

         24  scatter-site programs at Harlem United. Harlem

         25  United provides multi-level services for HASA
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          2  clients in a one-stop shop setting.

          3                 Our relationship with HASA has

          4  spanned many years. I'm happy to say that over the

          5  past few years, we have had great success in working

          6  with this HASA Administration, to provide quality

          7  supportive housing for persons affected by the AIDS

          8  virus.

          9                 Our single unit scatter site housing

         10  programs operate at near capacity, thanks to ongoing

         11  referrals from HASA.

         12                 However, there is one area that

         13  continues to concern both Harlem United and HASA,

         14  family referrals from HASA.

         15                 At present Harlem United has

         16  available four vacant family units, two of which

         17  have been vacant since September.

         18                 This has been discussed by HASA field

         19  office managers, housing specialists, and upper

         20  management with Harlem United, supervisors and

         21  directors.

         22                 All parties have acknowledged that

         23  there are homeless families living with HIV in need

         24  of housing and yet the referrals have not increased.

         25  The legislation, In The House Everyone proposal
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          2  could possibly ensure better referral process to

          3  continue to provide the type of quality care our

          4  clients have come to expect from our respective

          5  agencies.

          6                 I thank you for your time.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 Who would like to testify next?

         10                 Please move the microphone closer to

         11  you, and make sure that green light is on below.

         12                 MR. TOLBERT: Good morning. My name is

         13  Adrian Tolbert, and I'm a participant at Citywide,

         14  I'm also a HASA client.

         15                 I identify --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: You're very

         17  popular, too.

         18                 MR. TOLBERT: I've been in HASA now

         19  for almost a year. Actually, it's been a year

         20  February 16th, and my HASA worker has been very --

         21  has not given me like the housing applications. I

         22  have not received one from him. The guy who was

         23  sitting here who was saying about the transgender,

         24  how they give us our own private bathroom - this

         25  doesn't happen.
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          2                 I'm not respected, let alone if I got

          3  my own bathroom that would be even better, but the

          4  respect issue, I have a lot of trouble with my

          5  worker. He doesn't offer me a lot of things that he

          6  should be offering me. I shouldn't have to come to

          7  him and ask.

          8                 Also, oh, yes, living in these SROs,

          9  it's very hard. Sometimes these patients, I remember

         10  one time I lived on the sixth floor in the SRO and

         11  there was no elevator, and every day I had to walk

         12  up and down six flights of stairs. They're dirty.

         13  Sometimes they are not clean. The security. I've

         14  been robbed on numerous occasions living in these

         15  SROs. So, please pass the intro so that way we can

         16  get better living permanent housing. We need it.

         17                 It's not easy living in these SROs.

         18  Every six months you've got to move, or every 28

         19  days, you know. It's not easy. So please pass this

         20  intro. Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I want to thank

         22  you. And I just want to note, you know, there's

         23  nothing more important than folks who are trying to

         24  make sense on how to make government work, and to

         25  hear directly from people on the front line.
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          2                 I really appreciate you, in

          3  particular, coming forward to tell us what you're

          4  experiencing, because there's no way we're going to

          5  be able to make the system better unless people

          6  stand up and say this is what I'm going through and

          7  this is what we need to do. So, I really want to

          8  thank you for being a part of this hearing today.

          9                 MR. TOLBERT: You're welcome. Thank

         10  you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Please, sir, go

         12  ahead.

         13                 MR. KATTRELL: Good morning. No,

         14  excuse me, good afternoon. My name is Willis

         15  Kattrell, and I'm representing Harlem United.

         16                 Dear Committee members, Harlem United

         17  supports the three bills that make up the House

         18  Everyone Campaign.

         19                 Harlem United's experience as a

         20  housing provider working closely with HASA in this

         21  Administration has been a very positive overall

         22  experience. There has been some problems along the

         23  way. The current HASA Administration has always

         24  welcomed our input, listened to our concerns, and

         25  worked with us to overcome issues that get in the
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          2  way involving the PLWHAs homeless to house.

          3                 Significant progress has been made

          4  over the past few years by HASA in working with the

          5  community providers to address barriers between the

          6  field officers, providers and the PLWHAs.

          7                 The current leadership of HRA and

          8  HASA has proactively enlisted the AIDS community's

          9  patient in establishing stronger linkages to better

         10  address and resolve differences that previously were

         11  impediments to service provisions.

         12                 Continuation of this progress is

         13  becoming even more important with the recent news of

         14  resistant virus strains that further burdens the

         15  health of uninfected and infected alike.

         16                 The ability to move homeless PLWHAs

         17  as quickly as possible into permanent supportive

         18  housing that is safe and medically appropriate is

         19  the first step toward stabilization of health care.

         20                 Without a firm base from which to

         21  operate, those living with HIV and AIDS, many of

         22  whom also are living with addiction and mental

         23  illness cannot be expected to maintain the

         24  complicated process of identifying any providers and

         25  rolling into treatment, navigating referral
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          2  networks, specialty care and medication compliance.

          3                 Approval of the House Everyone

          4  legislation, combined with HASA's continued work and

          5  open communication with the community will fully

          6  support the City's goal of increased access to

          7  health care and compliance and treatment.

          8                 Expedient placement in supportive

          9  housing is the surest route towards stabilized

         10  continuous health care for persons living with HIV

         11  and AIDS.

         12                 Respectfully, Patrick J. McGovern,

         13  Executive Director of Harlem United.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         15  much, sir. I appreciate it. Now, I know some of my

         16  colleagues do have questions.

         17                 Council Member Annabel Palma.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Adrian, you

         19  heard me ask Executive Deputy Commissioner Iris

         20  Hernandez the time frame in which people are now

         21  being transferred from the temporary housing to

         22  permanent houses. Now you've just stated that you've

         23  been in an SRO for a little over a year?

         24                 MR. TOLBERT: A little over a year,

         25  yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: And is this

          3  your first time in an SRO?

          4                 MR. TOLBERT: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: And in that

          6  time frame within a year, have you been in the same

          7  SRO?

          8                 MR. TOLBERT: Okay, for the first

          9  three months I was living in three 28 days, where

         10  every 28 days I was transferred to a different

         11  place.

         12                 After that, they moved me into Mount

         13  Hope Residence, where I've been staying at for the

         14  past seven months.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: And you still

         16  don't have an application?

         17                 MR. TOLBERT: Still haven't received,

         18  and I've actually talked to my worker about this

         19  application and he, either sometimes he's too busy

         20  or, you know, he has other plans, but I have not

         21  received the application from him.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Do you have an

         23  option to change workers? Or you have to remain with

         24  this --

         25                 MR. TOLBERT: You know what? I have to
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          2  sign a grievance paper, and after I make that

          3  grievance paper out that says, well, this is what

          4  he's not doing for me, then I may get a chance, but

          5  right now they're not trying to do that. They're

          6  trying -- this worker is very difficult, and I think

          7  that's what they want for me. Because he makes it

          8  very difficult, and they're not trying to transfer

          9  me to anybody else, so...

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: I think you

         11  should put in a grievance paper and be transferred

         12  to someone else who is going to be willing to help

         13  you get permanent housing.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         15  Council Member. Now Council Member Chris Quinn.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just want

         17  follow up a little bit on what Council Member Palma

         18  said.

         19                 Do you know whether, do you know from

         20  other people who live where you live or friends you

         21  have or HASA clients, or anything like that, it's

         22  fine if you don't, whether your experience of being

         23  in traditional housing for a year and never having

         24  been given an application, which I actually think is

         25  really almost the worst part of the two things
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          2  you're saying. I mean, it's not good to be in

          3  transitional housing for a year, but at least you

          4  felt like somebody was trying, you know, but it's

          5  been made kind of hopeless if nobody has even given

          6  you an application.

          7                 Do you know, have you ever heard from

          8  other people whether they have had situations like

          9  that?

         10                 MR. TOLBERT: Yes, I have. Yes, I

         11  have. Especially in the transgender community. You

         12  know what I mean? It's not easy finding housing with

         13  us, because sometimes they think of us being

         14  irresponsible and not being ready. So, yeah,

         15  especially in the transgender community. You know,

         16  if I identify as a woman, you understand what I'm

         17  saying?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right.

         19                 MR. TOLBERT: So, people don't like

         20  that, and it is not accepted, and, so, sometimes,

         21  yeah, it's very difficult.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Do you want to

         23  add anything?

         24                 MR. TOLBERT: Also, I have peers here

         25  who have also been in the same situation, and if I
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          2  can ask them to stand up so that they can be seen.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And these are

          4  folks who have been --

          5                 MR. TOLBERT: Are in the same

          6  situation.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

          8  Thank you. Thank you.

          9                 I would ask the representatives from

         10  HRA who are still here, there are quite a number

         11  still here, I thank you for that, if you could look

         12  into this individual's case, in particular, and the

         13  cases of the other individuals who are set up -- who

         14  stood up, I'm sorry.

         15                 And also, if you could go back beyond

         16  helping these particular folks, would you go back

         17  and try to do some assessment of how many

         18  caseworkers aren't giving out applications. And if

         19  an immediate directive could go out to the

         20  supervisors and to all the case workers reminding

         21  them what the protocol is for giving out

         22  applications and then ask the folks who are the

         23  managers, or whatever the right title is,

         24  supervisors for the offices, conduct a retraining

         25  and some type of assessment of how prevalent the
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          2  problem is at their facilities.

          3                 I see HRA is nodding yes

          4  aggressively. So, thank you for that very much, and

          5  thank you for telling us your story, because it's

          6  obviously very helpful, and going to move things

          7  forward.

          8                 And Harlem United, I want to thank

          9  you for your work and also for really underscoring a

         10  point we made earlier, which is that we need to have

         11  a system where providers like you can talk to HRA in

         12  a real time situation, so that your units don't sit

         13  vacant, because that's really a tragedy,

         14  particularly when you're sitting next to somebody

         15  who has been in transitional for a year.

         16                 So, that will really, your testimony

         17  will help us to remain focused on making sure that

         18  the internet part of the equation actually happens.

         19  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         21  Council member. I want to echo the point about HRA

         22  remaining here. I appreciate that very deeply. I

         23  would say to HRA folks and other representatives of

         24  the Administration, this is something we've urged

         25  for a long time. We have only a limited number of
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          2  hearing each year and given the many topics covered

          3  by the General Welfare Committee, each topic really

          4  only gets a handful of hearings, and it is so

          5  important because so many leaders in the field, so

          6  many key advocates, so many people have personal

          7  stories to tell come here all in one place all for a

          8  short period of time. It's so important that the

          9  Administration have senior people stay and listen

         10  directly to that testimony. And it's deeply

         11  appreciated that HRA has chosen to do that today.

         12  So, I thank you for that.

         13                 I know Council Member Brewer has a

         14  question before we end this panel.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Very quickly.

         16  For Harlem United, how do you communicate with the

         17  agency? Is it computer, phone call, fax? What's the

         18  communication?

         19                 MR. KATTRELL: I think the items that

         20  you just mentioned are the vehicles or the mediums

         21  that we do communicate with HRA as well as HASA.

         22                 I think what we envisioned, that we

         23  have a better linkage between us so that we can

         24  provide services in a more expeditious way.

         25                 I envisioned from my dream that we
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          2  can communicate electronically and service our

          3  community a lot more effectively.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Well, that's

          5  what eventually the integrated human service

          6  platform that is being worked on for all the

          7  different City agencies is about. And I think the

          8  Commissioner was right when she said confidentiality

          9  is something that needs to be worked out and then

         10  you have a different state system, different

         11  platform, different database and the simple question

         12  is how can they integrate?

         13                 MR. KATTRELL: Yeah, I think what the

         14  key to all the assistance that you just noted, is

         15  the fact that they can talk to each other in such a

         16  way that they share the information in a timely

         17  fashion. And that we as providers have the necessary

         18  arsenals and tools to make the sound decisions for

         19  our members.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And do you

         21  have any sort of geographic information system kind

         22  of to know where the hotels are? I mean, you

         23  obviously have your own facilities, but is there

         24  something that you have in terms of referral

         25  besides, or just so you know where your people are,
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          2  where your clients are?

          3                 MR. KATTRELL: We know where our

          4  clients are, we know where our respected members

          5  are, as far as their housing stock.

          6                 As far as where they come from, we

          7  know that as well. But as far as the linkages in

          8  which people, or the HASA go to get members, we're

          9  not clear with that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: That's what

         11  you need to get. Thank you very much.

         12                 MR. KATTRELL: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         14  Council member. Thank you to this panel. It's been

         15  very, very helpful, and we appreciate the good work

         16  you're doing.

         17                 MR. KATTRELL: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: The last formal

         19  panel we're calling up is a panel of leading

         20  advocates and experts who are going to give us a

         21  sense of how to move forward.

         22                 First I'll call Virginia Shubert, and

         23  Armen Mergian, Shirlene Cooper, and Kacie Winsor.

         24                 Who would like to begin? Thank you.

         25  Bring the microphone close. This is my mantra: Bring
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          2  the microphone close, and when you turn on the

          3  microphone you see the green light is on.

          4                 Please introduce yourself before your

          5  testimony.

          6                 MS. COOPER: Okay. Good morning,

          7  everyone. My name is Shirlene Cooper. I'm a member

          8  organizer for the New York City AIDS Housing

          9  Network.

         10                 As part of the outreach team, I

         11  travel around to all the rooming houses and

         12  commercial single room occupancy hotels that the

         13  City's HIV/AIDS Service Administration uses for

         14  emergency housing. I then help the tenants fight for

         15  their rights to stay in one hotel, rather than

         16  getting moved every 28 days and then form tenants

         17  associations in their buildings.

         18                 I can honestly say that there are

         19  hundreds of HASA clients living in emergency housing

         20  system who have never been told by their caseworkers

         21  to fill out a housing application or if they have,

         22  have not been given an interview.

         23                 In fact, often, when I send a

         24  homeless HASA client over to their welfare center to

         25  ask, to fill out a housing application, they are
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          2  given an application for the New York City Housing

          3  Authority where there are long waits for housing on

          4  outdated application for Section 8.

          5                 Meanwhile, I know that the New York

          6  City AIDS HousingWorks organizational members that

          7  there are frequently vacant apartments waiting to be

          8  filled, but HASA is slow to send over housing

          9  applications.

         10                 I have met with HASA's director, HASA

         11  Director of Housing John Ruscillo numerous times. I

         12  can honestly say that he is very dedicated and

         13  capable. Calling him is usually all it takes to move

         14  someone from an emergency housing into medically

         15  appropriate permanent housing.

         16                 That clearly shows the flaw with the

         17  system. The system shouldn't all hinge on calling

         18  one person, or if it does, clients should be told to

         19  call him. HASA has known about this problem for a

         20  long time and while they say they were going to

         21  provide clients with a way to actually find out the

         22  status of their applications, they have never done

         23  so.

         24                 These bills will save the City money

         25  and save lives, and it needs to be legislation.
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          2                 If HASA improves the housing

          3  application process voluntarily, it will always be

          4  subject to change, as we have seen throughout the

          5  welfare system, it will eventually deteriorate.

          6                 HASA makes sure that every single

          7  homeless person with HIV/AIDS gets placed in

          8  emergency housing because there is a law that makes

          9  them do it.

         10                 They put few resources into place

         11  when people enter permanent housing, simply because

         12  no one is making them do it.

         13                 The people struggling to survive in

         14  the hotels and rooming houses are among the most

         15  vulnerable New Yorkers.

         16                 As a community, we need to do

         17  everything we can do to get them out of the deadly

         18  conditions that exist in the hotels.

         19                 I urge the Council to pass

         20  Introduction 541, 535 and 543. Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 Sir.

         24                 MR. MERGIAN: Good afternoon. My name

         25  is Armen Mergian. I am the senior staff attorney at
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          2  HousingWorks, and I'm here in particular to talk

          3  about the reporting bill, which I think is critical

          4  for our folks and for tens of thousands of New

          5  Yorkers.

          6                 I always reflect on the fact that

          7  it's wonderful that we have an oversight committee.

          8  Common sense and common decency demands that an

          9  agency that serves over 40,000 poor New Yorkers and

         10  their families living with HIV and AIDS, a family

         11  that spends millions of taxpayer dollars, be held

         12  accountable to someone.

         13                 The problem is that without the data

         14  with which to analyze how they're doing their job,

         15  there is no way an oversight committee can exist

         16  other than in name. It cannot do its duty.

         17                 In 1997, this Council, and then Mayor

         18  Giuliani, signed a wonderful law, Local Law 49, that

         19  among other things, had reporting requirements to

         20  demand that accountability. The problem is that it

         21  was fundamentally flawed, not in substance, but in

         22  methodology.

         23                 What that means is that you've been

         24  getting garbage for quite some time and been unable

         25  to fulfill your function. The great thing about the
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          2  Reporting Act, the Keith Cylar Act, in the honor of

          3  one of the true champions of the rights of people

          4  living with AIDS who recently passed, is that it

          5  cleans this up, and it does so without imposing, and

          6  this is critical, without imposing any new

          7  substantive obligations on HASA. And that's critical

          8  to understand. This is merely giving you, giving us,

          9  giving everyone, a report card, which you don't get

         10  right now, and it comes without a cost because there

         11  are no substantive obligations.

         12                 It also is less onerous in fact than

         13  the four-year monitoring period we've seen where on

         14  a monthly basis they provided essentially the same

         15  data. So, this bill, and that ended, of course, in

         16  December, this bill merely asks that on a quarterly

         17  basis, on a less onerous basis, they provide

         18  essentially that same report cards.

         19                 Now, if we've learned anything it's

         20  that over a decade of litigation has shown us that

         21  we've got to keep vigilant and we've got to codify

         22  these obligations because they're not just going to

         23  happen. A trial with regard to their performance in

         24  2000 concluded, and I quote, that they have

         25  chronically and systematically failed to ensure
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          2  meaningful access to critical subsistence benefits

          3  with devastating consequences to 41,000 individuals

          4  living with HIV and AIDS.

          5                 Now, the City, rather than simply

          6  comply, fought that all the way up to the Supreme

          7  Court, I'm happy to say just this last year the

          8  Supreme Court dismissed their appeal and that was

          9  finalized. Meanwhile, we have actually what amounted

         10  to more than four years of monitoring where we're

         11  able to see exactly how they were doing. All the

         12  while, though, and this is important, all the while

         13  the City Council lacking any meaningful data,

         14  essentially failed to hold them responsible for some

         15  egregious violations, and I'll very quickly take you

         16  through a few.

         17                 In 2004, we're talking about

         18  September, less than a year ago, single individuals

         19  presenting at HASA with immediate needs, and that's

         20  folks who have absolutely nothing. Poor. Released

         21  from the hospital. Might have come from North

         22  Carolina where they were gay bashed and they have

         23  nothing and no one. They might be released from

         24  prison without anything, without a dollar. Without

         25  any money to buy Enfamil for their child. They're
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          2  supposed to be getting their services, and supposed

          3  to be getting their immediate needs grant on a

          4  same-day basis. In one center, the Greenwich Center,

          5  41 percent of individuals who presented for that

          6  didn't get that immediate need when they were

          7  supposed to. This Council never called anyone in

          8  because the Council didn't know that.

          9                 With emergency food stamps throughout

         10  2003, one-quarter of individuals who needed

         11  emergency food stamps, they didn't have anything to

         12  eat or feed their children with. They didn't get

         13  them on a timely basis.

         14                 In the Grand Concourse Center, that

         15  was as high as 69 percent at times, and in other

         16  centers, 50 percent routinely, because you didn't

         17  have the data.

         18                 Finally, with regard to the caseload

         19  ratios, which are 25 to one in family cases and 34

         20  to one overall, and critical to making sure that

         21  when our folks call, they can get a body on a line

         22  to get those desperately needed benefits, they were

         23  in violation in seven out of ten centers in family

         24  rations, and five out of 11 overall. But yet this

         25  Committee, without having that data, never called

                                                            120

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  them to the carpet. Never said what are you doing?

          3  Seven out of 11 centers in violation of the

          4  mandatory requirements that this City Council passed

          5  and mandated? It's a problem.

          6                 The good news is that through court

          7  intervention, towards the end of the monitoring

          8  period, they came more fully into compliance in just

          9  about every area, that's true.

         10                 The bad news is that we have

         11  absolutely no data since November, because there is

         12  no law mandating that that data be provided.

         13                 Now, the good thing is that this

         14  Cylar bill, this reporting bill, will close those

         15  loopholes and make sure that the report card is

         16  meaningful. Why do we need that? Because right now

         17  all we're getting, for example, are averages. So, we

         18  heard Council Member Quinn talk about, and others

         19  talk about the 30-day time frame that they have in

         20  order to give folks that first month's rent. Now, if

         21  you're homeless and you finally find an apartment

         22  that's cheap enough, maybe close to where your

         23  children go to school, where your health care is,

         24  and you need that check, 30 days is a long time to

         25  tell that landlord to wait. But heaven knows, you
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          2  better get the check within 30 days, because after

          3  that he or she is not going to wait another month,

          4  or another five days and leave that apartment

          5  fallow.

          6                 Well, if they're reporting averages,

          7  let's say two people got the check in ten days, that

          8  makes sense, but another two it took 40 days. And as

          9  the Council Member pointed out, landlords are itchy

         10  to get it in 30. Forty is ridiculous. It may mean a

         11  homeless person staying homeless.

         12                 The average there, four people, 100

         13  days, 40, 40 ten and tenth, is 25 days. This Council

         14  looking at averages might say, they're doing a good

         15  job, that's 25 days when a law gives them 30 for

         16  doing their job. In fact, 50 percent of poor people

         17  who are homeless and desperately need an apartment

         18  didn't get the check when they were supposed to and

         19  they well stay homeless.

         20                 This is not to demonize anyone.  This

         21  is not to demonize anyone. What it says is simply we

         22  need an oversight committee that is aware that it's

         23  not 25 days for everybody. That it was in fact 50

         24  percent violations. If it's zero percent violations,

         25  it's ample cause for HASA to brag about the
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          2  wonderful job they're doing, and that's why I think

          3  we're having the lovefest here. I don't think anyone

          4  can say that a sensible law just says give us a

          5  report card. You served 41,000 desperately ill and

          6  poor people, give us a report card, is wrong. It

          7  doesn't prejudge whether that report card will be

          8  good or bad, but it says we can't be an oversight

          9  committee if we have nothing.

         10                 To take just a couple more examples

         11  and conclude, the current law doesn't properly

         12  disaggregate in category. So, emergency benefits

         13  that might take one day are mixed in with benefits

         14  that might take 30. If you have a marshal's notice

         15  and you need an emergency check within a few days,

         16  and that gets pushed in with the averages for the

         17  30-day period, well, it's going to bring that number

         18  down and you won't know what they're doing.

         19                 That's why we need a bill that says

         20  give us an honest report card.

         21                 In short, I really think this bill is

         22  a no-brainer. No substantive requirements, doesn't

         23  cost money, less onerous than the month-by-month

         24  reports which are essentially the same that we've

         25  been getting for four years, and it says to this

                                                            123

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  Committee, if you're going to enforce your own law,

          3  which you passed in 1997, you've got to demand some

          4  accountability, and accountability that's not

          5  onerous, but accountability they've shown they can

          6  do.

          7                 I'll say in conclusion very quickly

          8  that I don't speak much, I think my colleagues will,

          9  about the housing bills. But if we've learned

         10  anything, it's that housing is healthier, as was

         11  mentioned for people living with AIDS.

         12                 You know, we've had to sue all along

         13  the way to get people out of those SROs. In 2002, a

         14  Supreme Court judge concluded that the conditions in

         15  the SROs that the Plaintiffs in that case were sent

         16  to repeatedly weren't suitable for the healthy, much

         17  less the severely immuno-compromised, and said

         18  you've got to stop with the rodent infestations.

         19  You've got to stop with everything else. You've got

         20  to make sure that these are medically appropriate.

         21                 What this bill says is that's not a

         22  home. That's not a way to fight the illness. What we

         23  need is to move people into permanent housing.

         24                 And it's not only the morally correct

         25  thing to do. As we pointed out, it's also cost
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          2  effective for the taxpayer. It's a rare sort of

          3  confluence of that which is right and that which is

          4  fiscally sound. So, I think it needs to be done

          5  immediately. I think if history has shown us

          6  anything it's that these SROs are no place for any

          7  individual, much less for those who are severely

          8  immuno-compromised to live. I urge immediate

          9  passage.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         11  much. I just want to note that I think part of why

         12  we are seeing a more favorable response from HRA

         13  today, I'm sure part of it has been there's been a

         14  meeting of the minds. I also think some of it is the

         15  good work that everyone in this room has done to

         16  create an environment where accountability really is

         17  something that people realize we can't do without

         18  practically, and that won't be acceptable in a

         19  democratic society not to have that accountability.

         20  So, I think everyone needs to recognize that these

         21  things don't happen by accident. They happen based

         22  on activism, whether it's legislative or community,

         23  and that's what's brought us to a point where there

         24  is some agreement on moving forward with this type

         25  of legislation. Thank you.
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          2                 Ms. Shubert.

          3                 MR. SHUBERT: Thank you. Well, that's

          4  a perfect seguay into my remarks. And the good news

          5  is I'm not going to read my prepared testimony,

          6  which is rather lengthy. But I wanted to put into

          7  the record some of the findings and some detailed

          8  recommendations from the recently released report of

          9  the results of an assessment of the housing needs

         10  with HIV/AIDS in New York City and in the Lower

         11  Hudson Valley.

         12                 My name is Virginia Shubert. I had

         13  the honor of working on that study along with

         14  colleagues from the Hudson Planning Group, the

         15  University of Pennsylvania, the CUCS, the Center for

         16  Urban Community Services and Public Sector Research.

         17  It was a two-year study. I think people are familiar

         18  with it. It began in 2001 and it was commissioned by

         19  the Office of AIDS Policy of the Department of

         20  Health and Mental Hygiene, and funded under the

         21  HOPWA program.

         22                 The study was guided by an advisory

         23  team and we had the pleasure of working over the

         24  course of the study with a number of people from

         25  City agencies, including a very good working
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          2  relationship with members of the HOPWA management

          3  and staff.

          4                 I'm not going to go over the details

          5  of the study or the methodology, but I will refer

          6  the Committee members to the larger document,

          7  because the study encompassed the results of the

          8  survey of 2,000 people with AIDS in the City who

          9  participated, over 200 providers and advocates who

         10  participated in focus groups and interviews, and

         11  though a number of working groups, including a

         12  working group on referral and placement processes in

         13  the City. Because one of the specific objectives of

         14  needs assessment was to examine the HIV/AIDS housing

         15  assessment referral and replacement process, and to

         16  make specific recommendations on how that process

         17  could be improved.

         18                 And let me say that there was on this

         19  topic, above all others I would say an amazing

         20  amount of consensus about the challenges faced by

         21  the system, and the need, the urgent need to begin

         22  to realize more efficiencies in the way that the

         23  City is able to use existing stock of supportive

         24  housing.

         25                 I will say that the overall findings
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          2  of the needs assessment were that the City of New

          3  York has made a remarkable investment in housing for

          4  people with HIV/AIDS, probably unique investment, in

          5  that that investment had remarkable success in

          6  promoting stability in connection to health care for

          7  persons who are able to secure permanent housing,

          8  and that is among a population of those in need who

          9  struggle with mini complex-like issues, including,

         10  it's been mentioned today mental health issues, 45

         11  percent of all persons with AIDS surveyed had

         12  experienced a stay in a shelter on the street. So,

         13  history of extreme poverty, substitutes history, and

         14  histories of incarceration, 43 percent of everyone

         15  we surveyed had a history of incarceration.

         16                 All of these are issues that impact,

         17  as you know, on the ability to secure and maintain

         18  permanent housing, and the system, when it works

         19  well, has been remarkable in making it possible for

         20  many thousands of New Yorkers with HIV/AIDS.

         21                 The system, though, faces some

         22  significant challenges in the near and far term,

         23  many of them related to population growth, a growing

         24  number of New Yorkers living with HIV/AIDS,

         25  increased homelessness overall in our City, a lack
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          2  of affordable housing opportunities in the City, and

          3  barriers to the development of new special needs

          4  housing.

          5                 Those are the challenges. The good

          6  news is that there is a tremendous opportunity to

          7  improve the existing housing systems, rather

          8  quickly. And I am very encouraged to hear that there

          9  is ongoing work on the development of a single point

         10  of access program for HIV/AIDS housing in the City.

         11                 We heard from providers, consumers

         12  and certainly we heard very loudly from House of

         13  Representatives, there was a tremendous amount of

         14  frustration over the fact that there is existing way

         15  to either assess an individual's particular housing

         16  needs or to match that individual with available

         17  vacancy.

         18                 And some of the things you've heard

         19  about, that results in stress for both the consumer

         20  and the system as a whole, as providers sit with

         21  empty apartments and consumers sit in inappropriate

         22  and often dangerous emergency housing situations.

         23                 The referral and replacement working

         24  group of the needs assessment work together closely

         25  over a number of months and included lots of faces
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          2  that I see in the room, and I think that when we

          3  were able to deliver as an interim deliverable the

          4  detailed recommendations from that work group, that

          5  they reflected a great deal of thought and collected

          6  wisdom on what needed to be done and the work of the

          7  group was very specific in the sense that it

          8  developed parameters, goals and even a time frame.

          9                 One thing that I think needs to be

         10  stressed, and this is the thing that we heard more

         11  than anything else, was the need for a comprehensive

         12  assessment tool, and for guidelines for

         13  administering that assessment.

         14                 So, I am encouraged to hear that

         15  mental health needs are being taken into account,

         16  that the working group was very concerned that that

         17  tool encompassed many factors, including, and

         18  perhaps most importantly, consumer preferences.

         19  There were a number of other adjustments that were

         20  felt needed in the system when simply shipping the

         21  paradigm from referring clients to one program at a

         22  time to rather making three referrals for each

         23  participant or consumer so that they can make an

         24  informed choice among housing placements. Because

         25  there is a tremendous amount of inefficiency when a
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          2  placement is made that's inappropriate. There's a

          3  high level of failure and a recycling of the person

          4  back through the emergency system. People are placed

          5  in situations that are either over-serviced for

          6  their level of independence, or underserviced, and

          7  then they suffer another, can be very crushing

          8  housing loss.

          9                 So, rather than go through, I could

         10  go through the specific findings. I think I

         11  summarized them. I would simply encourage everyone

         12  that's working on this process at this point to plug

         13  into that willingness and interest by providers and

         14  consumers to work together with HASA to create a

         15  referral and placement system that's appropriate,

         16  that's client-centered, and that will result in

         17  effective placement that can increase stability and

         18  help us to reduce the continued significant reliance

         19  on the inappropriate emergency settings.

         20                 So, thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you. We

         22  know how much work you did and we know how detailed

         23  your written testimony is, so you get a special

         24  commendation for summarizing your remarks. So, I

         25  want you to know, and everyone to know, that your
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          2  work very much informed our thinking process as we

          3  prepared these pieces of legislation, and we thank

          4  you for the very wonderful job you did in this

          5  research.

          6                 MS. SHUBERT: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I know Council

          8  Member Quinn has a question.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Armen, you were

         10  here before when I had the discussion with the

         11  lawyer from HRA, so keeping my promise I said I

         12  would ask the Plaintiff, you're the plaintiff,

         13  right?

         14                 MR. MERGIAN: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I can't

         16  remember who's what in a legal case, not being a

         17  lawyer.

         18                 What he said, you know, I clarified

         19  the record that the time frame had elapsed, and he

         20  speculated first that you didn't seek to have the

         21  monitoring continued because things were, you know,

         22  of such a great state, and then also speculated that

         23  you didn't because you believed the judge wouldn't

         24  have granted it because things are at such a great

         25  state. So, I just wanted to comment yourself on
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          2  that.

          3                 MR. MERGIAN: Sure. I'll speak to

          4  that. And I'll note that I had the pleasure of being

          5  co-counsel of Ms. Shubert on that legislation, that

          6  litigation for over a decade.

          7                 The answer is that everything is sort

          8  of skewed. It's a little bit more complicated than

          9  what's presented.

         10                 First of all, the monitoring period

         11  ended up lasting almost four and a half years.

         12  September of 2000 was when the decision was issued,

         13  and because of some complications with the appeal

         14  and other things, the monitoring period actually was

         15  extended. So, December of 2004 is when it ended,

         16  December 11th, and November of 2000 is when the

         17  decision came down. So, we're talking about well

         18  over four years of monitoring to begin with.

         19                 It's exceedingly difficult, given

         20  that unprecedented amount of time of monitoring,

         21  which was originally going to end in 2003, but ended

         22  nearly in 2005, to continue that.

         23                 The judge, who could have continued

         24  it, elected not to, that was clear. It's a mixed

         25  bag, however. I don't want to be overly harsh in not
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          2  citing improvements that were made. Absolutely in

          3  areas regarding the 30 days for rent checks,

          4  regarding emergency food stamps and immediate needs

          5  grants and other things, improvement was made.

          6                 The notion, though, that there's no

          7  basis for continuing our vigilance in monitoring is

          8  in fact inaccurate.

          9                 As I mentioned, as recently as this

         10  past summer we saw seven out of ten HASA offices

         11  being out of whack with the 25 to one clients to

         12  case manager ratios and five out of the 11 overall

         13  HASA offices being out of whack with regard to the

         14  34 to one overall ratio.

         15                 They continue to this day actually to

         16  violate the caseload ratios that this Council had

         17  mandated. And a good thing about the Cylar Act is

         18  that it will show you exactly what those ratios are,

         19  disaggregated between family and individual or

         20  overall cases, rather, for each of the different

         21  offices.

         22                 We don't want to have someone in

         23  Queens or Bronx or in Manhattan having a 40, 45 to 1

         24  ratio, whatever it might be, while someone in Staten

         25  Island has a lower ratio and it looks good overall,
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          2  because those individuals at the poorer offices are

          3  going to have real trouble reaching that case

          4  manager.

          5                 So the answer is it's a mixed bag.

          6  There absolutely were continuing violations that

          7  might have given cause for continued monitoring. But

          8  after four and a half years, the Judge deemed that

          9  to be of sufficient time. I want to commend the

         10  improvements that were made. They were made. But

         11  also point out, and this is why we need a bill, that

         12  all of them were made under threat of contempt, and

         13  that years after the decision came down, as I cited,

         14  in 2003 and 2004 we saw violations upwards of 69 and

         15  70 percent in some HASA centers not meeting the

         16  mandated time frames.

         17                 Miraculously, as the time ran out for

         18  the monitoring everything got better and that's

         19  great, but that doesn't neglect or in any way negate

         20  the fact that we spent four years trying to get them

         21  in shape, and we'd like to keep it that way. And if

         22  everything is kosher and they're meeting their time

         23  frames, the report card will say that and this

         24  oversight committee won't have a lot of work. That's

         25  what's so good about the bill.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you for

          3  clarifying that.

          4                 And the other thing about the bill in

          5  this process is, you know, things are different

          6  today, thank God, than they were when Giuliani was

          7  Mayor. And a year from now, eight years from now,

          8  four years from now, whatever different men, and

          9  hopefully women, will be Mayors, and the good thing

         10  about making something a law is it stipulates things

         11  in perpetuity until they're changed by the Council

         12  or a legislative body. And to have reporting to

         13  whoever is the Chair of General Welfare, et cetera,

         14  et cetera, can look is a good thing, and also

         15  whoever the HRA Commissioner is can have the charge

         16  of that internal evaluation.

         17                 And one thing I want to say that I

         18  think is important about this important bill is, you

         19  know, we have the Mayor's Management Report, which

         20  is an excellent reporting tool, but as anybody who

         21  has sat on this hearing knows, HASA is complicated.

         22  And you can ask the same question and get 14

         23  different answers, not because somebody is trying to

         24  not answer your question, but because it's that

         25  complicated.
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          2                 So, we can't put the square peg,

          3  so-to-speak, of HASA into the round peg of the MMR

          4  and think we'll get what we need. We've learned

          5  that, you know, in time. It's more important when

          6  you have a Mayor who is trying to do bad things,

          7  that's absolutely sure, but it's a good thing

          8  anyway, because it's an important exercise in

          9  review, and sometimes we don't have that legal

         10  mandate, we'll be so lost in the crisis of the day

         11  we won't do that review. So, thank you and your

         12  lawsuits for helping us remember that. And thank you

         13  all for your work.

         14                 MR. MERGIAN: Thank you also for your

         15  tireless advocacy. We appreciate it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I want to thank

         17  the members of this panel for your wonderful work

         18  and for the testimony. It is very helpful to us as

         19  we continue. We look forward to continue to work

         20  with you to make sure that this legislation has

         21  passed and implemented.

         22                 So, thank you very much.

         23                 We have two more folks as part of

         24  public testimony. I'd like to call them forward,

         25  Robert Jones and Tom Weiss. While they're coming up,
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          2  I'd like to note that we are going to enter into the

          3  record, in addition to this entirety of Ms.

          4  Shubert's testimony and her report, we also have

          5  testimony from James Stanton, and testimony from

          6  Kacie Winsor, that we will be entering into the

          7  formal record.

          8                 Again, last call here for Robert

          9  Jones or Tom Weiss for public testimony. Robert is

         10  here. Okay, come on up.

         11                 While you're coming up, I'll just

         12  remind everyone that the approach we take in this

         13  Committee and have for three years is that public

         14  testimony is open but it's a two-minute time limit,

         15  because we have all been here for quite awhile, so

         16  it's two minutes, so we welcome your testimony, sir.

         17                 MR. JONES: Hi. My name is Robert

         18  Jones, and I'm grateful to have the honor of being

         19  here among so many esteemed people, including the

         20  HRA and HASA people.

         21                 I've been living in New York about

         22  two years now, and when I got here, for about 16

         23  years prior to this I was living with the virus, but

         24  because I was only of HIV status, I couldn't receive

         25  any assistance. And it was appalling, as well as
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          2  degrading, and so heavily that I was diagnosed with

          3  a mental disability which is how I got into the

          4  system to get services.

          5                 In the process of that happening, I

          6  began to learn more about how deeply that illness

          7  had set upon me, because when you're diagnosed with

          8  an illness, there becomes a certain mental

          9  disability that comes in a play of weight that comes

         10  on you that's very hard to remove on your own, and

         11  with all the stigmas and the self-degenerating

         12  thoughts that I was having about having the illness

         13  became appalling. New York was such a microcosm of

         14  things going on. I couldn't get the assistance that

         15  I needed here, so I was referred to Upstate. While

         16  being there, housing was an easier situation for me

         17  to deal with because they didn't have as many cases.

         18  I learned a great deal about advocacy and speaking

         19  up for myself, and just two years ago I got back

         20  here, and when I got back here, because I didn't

         21  have the M11Q diagnosis, I couldn't receive any

         22  housing assistance, and when I went through HASA in

         23  the beginning and they told me that they couldn't

         24  help me, and I had to rely on my family.

         25                 After getting a minimal place with
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          2  Social Security increasing my money in order to help

          3  pay for me to stay, I began to look for a service

          4  here that would help me, and I was sent to the New

          5  York City AIDS Housing Network who immediately

          6  assisted me. Once they assisted me they told me my

          7  rights, and when I found out about my rights, what I

          8  did was I collaborated between them, the information

          9  that they gave me and my doctor, and they came

         10  together to find out that the multiple diagnosis,

         11  multiple diagnosis that I had could be put together

         12  to give me the -- and I was approved by HASA. And

         13  the process of me being approved by HASA, again, my

         14  family and friends who lived here positive and not

         15  positive would not allow me to move into the SRO

         16  system. They told me how degenerative it is, and

         17  what the experiences of other people were. So, I

         18  went to an agency and sat for the next six and a

         19  half months awaiting for housing, all based on

         20  because I had a mental diagnosis, they wanted to put

         21  me into a mentally ill program, which I had worked

         22  on for at least the past ten years and knew all

         23  about coping skills and how to speak for myself and

         24  things, but as the prior lady said, being a

         25  high-functioning person and a low-functioning person
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          2  are two different things, and I was held back

          3  because I was being stipulated as a low-functioning

          4  person.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Sir, I don't

          6  meant to interrupt but we do try and keep to one

          7  standard about time. So, if you would be kind enough

          8  to sum up, I would appreciate it.

          9                 MR. JONES: Okay. The summary of this

         10  is that because there is not in place, an in-place

         11  assessment period while the person is in housing,

         12  it's not fair that PWAs should be kept out or put

         13  into degenerative systems like the SROs that they

         14  have while they're trying to make an assessment of

         15  them.

         16                 Permanency housing is something

         17  that's needed and it should be a human right for

         18  everyone, but if you're taking people and putting

         19  them into transitional housing, with such a low

         20  scale and I mean rats and roaches carry different

         21  illnesses, they're putting them in places like that,

         22  what you do is you push them out of the system

         23  instead of helping them in the system.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you, sir.

         25                 MR. JONES: I think it's really
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          2  important.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Again, we

          4  appreciate hearing straight from you. We appreciate

          5  you relaying your personal experiences. It helps us

          6  very much and I thank you for that.

          7                 We have one more person for public

          8  testimony. Mr. Weiss. Again, it's a two-minute time

          9  limit. We do that with every hearing and all public

         10  testimony. So we ask everyone to please respect

         11  that.

         12                 MR. WEISS: Yeah, I only got a flood

         13  of e-mails, I only got to my e-mails the day before

         14  yesterday so I didn't have time to do a statement.

         15  But I'll confine myself to issuing a strong

         16  endorsement for each of these three pieces of

         17  legislation. But I want to add something here, that

         18  apparently has not been addressed. It's usually the

         19  government that is blamed for foul-ups, and the

         20  government certainly has, you know, done its share.

         21  I hope the Council starts looking at the

         22  non-profits, which are of non-profits in name only.

         23                 I'm not an AIDS person, but I have

         24  been homeless for about seven years, thanks in part

         25  to a screening process that is political in nature,
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          2  among other things. The trouble-makers are screened

          3  out. I have an interesting tenant history, I'm not

          4  going to go through a process whereby a

          5  gender-biased judge by the name of Marilyn Schaffer

          6  evicted me for allowing somebody to play a flute in

          7  my home, starting me on the road to homelessness,

          8  victim of a landlord by the name of Thomas Berger,

          9  who ought to be checked out, head of the Association

         10  of Commercial Property Owners, the lost wing in the

         11  real estate industry, organized crime connected,

         12  icon of the religious Jewish community in Forest

         13  Hills.

         14                 Anyway, but you might want to check

         15  out the icon of the non-profit establishment, known

         16  as the Partnership for the Homeless, which abuses

         17  its clients and then misrefers them. You might want

         18  to check out another icon of the non-profit industry

         19  called Common Ground, which runs the Times Square

         20  Hotel, and also weeds out people that it considers

         21  suspect. Somebody ought to talk to Mr. Jim McClosky,

         22  you do not do things his way, you are out on the

         23  street.

         24                 Somebody ought to check into, for

         25  example, their use of an organization called First
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          2  Registry. It's a tenant screening service which was

          3  exposed in an article in the New York Times as

          4  mishandling applications that are sent by landlords

          5  to screen out clients.

          6                 I suspect I am not the only person

          7  who has been weeded out in certain ways because of a

          8  suspect tenant history, at any rate. And I would

          9  imagine that people possibly with HIV positive

         10  diagnosis are even more subject to this kind of

         11  thing because many of them are activists.

         12                 So, anyway, in sum, I think these are

         13  very important pieces of legislation, but I would

         14  hope, Mr. DeBlasio, that just as I've been rather

         15  persistent about the matter of the still

         16  non-existent, still failure of the City to require

         17  carbon monoxide detectors in shelters and drop-in

         18  centers, we've talked about that. I understand

         19  you're preparing a bill on it. That there needs to

         20  be probably a separate investigation on the

         21  non-profits. They are not non-profits. Somebody, who

         22  is going to explain to me why Arnold Cohen makes a

         23  six-figure salary and there are not enough blankets

         24  for the people who populate his Peter's Place, one

         25  which I've referred to as Auschwitz Light, in terms
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          2  of the kind of abuse that go on.

          3                 Anyway, to sum up, these bills are

          4  essential, Up Front News will endorse them, we will

          5  work for them. I'm just curious why, I was looking

          6  for Charlie Barron's name on it, but I'll talk to

          7  him, I don't see why he's not on it. But these bills

          8  need to be passed. They need to be passed quickly.

          9                 I'm curious if the Mayor has taken a

         10  position on it, on any of them. I'm not supposed to

         11  ask questions, but that is a question I'd like to

         12  have answered. Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, I'll

         14  conclude. First of all, thank you, Mr. Weiss. I'll

         15  conclude by saying we are hopeful from the

         16  Administration's testimony that we will come to an

         17  agreement on all three bills, and I will thus note

         18  on the previous point about the carbon monoxide

         19  detectors, that we have been in touch with DHS, and

         20  they have confirmed that they distributed carbon

         21  monoxide detectors to all shelters and drop-in

         22  centers, and that that is a legal --

         23                 MR. WEISS: Could we get something in

         24  writing on that? Could I get something in writing on

         25  that?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: We would be

          3  happy to do that.

          4                 MR. WEISS: Because I know the

          5  transfiguration church does not have one.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Sir,

          7  respectfully, it's not a debate, but thank you very

          8  much for your testimony.

          9                 MR. WEISS: Okay, thank you. We'll be

         10  in touch. Okay, bye.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         12  everyone. Very good hearing. And let's move forward

         13  on this legislation. This meeting of the General

         14  Welfare Committee is adjourned.

         15                 (The following written testimony was

         16  read into the record.)

         17

         18

         19  Written Testimony Of:

         20  James Staton

         21  New York City AIDS Housing Network

         22

         23                 Good morning. My name is James

         24  Staton, and I am a member of the NYC AIDS Housing

         25  Network. I am also the chair of the Malibu Hotel
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          2  Tenants Association. I was placed in the Malibu

          3  Hotel over a year ago by the City's HIV/AIDS

          4  Services Administration (HASA). I was led to believe

          5  by my HASA caseworker that my stay at the Malibu

          6  Hotel would be short, lasting no more than 2 months

          7  or so. Yet, one year later, I was still in the

          8  hotel.

          9                 I went back to HASA regularly and I

         10  have to admit that I thought we were doing

         11  everything we could to find permanent, medically

         12  appropriate housing. The conditions in the Malibu

         13  Hotel were deplorable: rampant drug dealing, lack of

         14  security on the floors, discriminatory treatment by

         15  the management of the hotel against those of us sent

         16  by the City's HASA. At the hotel, we were not

         17  allowed to have visitors after 4:00 p.m., we

         18  frequently suffered long periods without heat or hot

         19  water, we had a curfew of 10:00 p.m. For a while, I

         20  didn't complain because I thought my stay there

         21  would be short and that HASA was working on moving

         22  me into permanent, medically appropriate housing.

         23                 When organizers from the NYC AIDS

         24  Housing Network (NYCAHN) knocked on my door and

         25  asked me if I filled out a HASA housing application,
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          2  I assumed I had when I entered the Malibu. Then they

          3  told me that HASA doesn't act on housing

          4  applications that were older than 6 months. I

          5  couldn't believe that no one at HASA told me that.

          6                 I helped NYCAHN form a tenant

          7  association in the Malibu Hotel. I found out that my

          8  situation was similar to the over 100 tenants living

          9  in my building. Tenants from other hotels in the

         10  neighborhood starting coming to the tenant

         11  association. I found out that most of us stay in the

         12  hotels, some of us moving from hotel to hotel, for

         13  at least a year. Most of had been in the emergency

         14  housing system for over 3 years.

         15                 Then I found out that the City pays

         16  between $2,000-$3,000 per person, per month. I could

         17  have lived in a decent apartment, with my own

         18  bathroom, own kitchen for much cheaper than that.

         19                 Only after our tenant association met

         20  with the HASA Director of Housing, John Ruscillo

         21  about 3 months ago have I been given an interview

         22  with a non-profit housing provider who is trying to

         23  find me medically appropriate permanent housing.

         24                 I learned from them, that they

         25  frequently lose apartments because HASA doesn't send
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          2  them homeless people. I have over a 100 in my

          3  building alone.

          4                 I urge the Council to pass

          5  Introduction 541, 535, and 543.

          6

          7

          8  Written Testimony Of:

          9  Kacie Winsor

         10  Policy Associate/Community Organizer

         11  New York AIDS Coalition

         12

         13                 Good morning. My name is Kacie

         14  Winsor, and I am the Policy Associate/Community

         15  Organizer for the New York AIDS Coalition. NYAC is

         16  an alliance of over 200 community-based service

         17  providers serving people living with, and affected

         18  by the HIV/AIDS epidemic. NYAC works to create a

         19  unified advocacy voice in support of more adequate

         20  funding for AIDS treatment, prevention, and care,

         21  and more just policies impacting people living with

         22  and affected by the HIV virus.

         23                 Before I begin my testimony, I would

         24  like to thank the General Welfare Committee for

         25  providing me the opportunity to speak at such an
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          2  important event. As a representative of an

          3  organization focused on combating the HIV/AIDS

          4  epidemic and the forces driving increasing

          5  infections of HIV and related diseases, my testimony

          6  will focus on why the passage of the House Everyone

          7  Legislation, with its three respective AIDS Housing

          8  bills, is absolutely imperative for people living

          9  with and affected by the HIV/AIDS epidemic.

         10                 While Local Law 49, which Mayor

         11  Giuliani signed into effect eight years ago, makes

         12  an effort to safeguard the rights of HASA clients

         13  and to ensure timely delivery of benefits and

         14  services using mandated reporting requirements, the

         15  existing system fails to accurately assess HASA's

         16  performance, and all too often leaves homeless

         17  people living with AIDS at the mercy of an

         18  ineffective and inadequate public response. A system

         19  which places people who are without homes and are

         20  living with AIDS in dangerous emergency housing

         21  beyond the legally-mandated time frame, and fails to

         22  transition them to more affordable, and medically

         23  appropriate permanent housing, is a system in

         24  desperate need of repair.

         25                 Today's proposed legislation offers
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          2  an opportunity for leadership, and a chance to

          3  improve the lives of homeless people living with

          4  HIV/AIDS. The Keith Cylar Act/HASA Reporting Act

          5  (Bill No. 541) represents a small, but significant

          6  and necessary step toward tightening existing

          7  reporting requirements, and ensuring that the

          8  Council obtains an accurate and in-depth account

          9  using appropriate performance measures.

         10                 The HASA Housing Application Act

         11  (Bill No. 535) would ensure that qualified clients

         12  receive the assistance they need to obtain medically

         13  appropriate permanent housing. For people living

         14  with AIDS, and for the greater community, passing

         15  this bill demonstrates vision, compassion, and

         16  recognition of human dignity for all people,

         17  including those who are HIV positive.

         18                 By creating a centralized housing

         19  referral and placement system, the HASA Tracking Act

         20  (Bill No. 543) would enable HASA to meet the

         21  legally-mandated timeframe requirements for moving

         22  homeless people living with AIDS into

         23  medically-appropriate permanent housing, while

         24  providing an opportunity to track not only the

         25  people living with AIDS in the emergency housing
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          2  system, but also the conditions of their living

          3  placements.

          4                 NYAC fully supports the House

          5  Everyone Legislation, with the three aforementioned

          6  AIDS Housing bills. Ensuring that people with AIDS

          7  are given access to medically appropriate permanent

          8  housing in a reasonable time frame, and that we have

          9  in place an effective and accurate evaluation system

         10  based on suitable performance measures to reach this

         11  goal, clearly translates into more just housing

         12  policies for people living with and affected by

         13  AIDS.

         14                 The statements provided here today by

         15  community-based providers and their clients are

         16  similar to the experiences of many of our NYAC

         17  members. We stand here before you today because we

         18  are witnesses to the everyday challenges confronting

         19  people living with AIDS. We can share our

         20  testimonies and advocate for more adequate and

         21  effective social policies, but only you have the

         22  leadership it takes to respond with courage and pass

         23  this AIDS Housing legislation. We hope you will rise

         24  to the challenge.

         25                 (Hearing concluded at 12:55 p.m.)
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